L O L CLIFE ASSURANCE LIMITED

Directors” Report

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report, together with the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 31t December 2023,

Principal activities of the Company
The principal activity of the Company is the carrying on of Life insurance business.

Profit/ (Loss) for the year ended 31 December 2023

Rs
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 938,975,404
Income Tax Reversal -
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 938,975,404

Director’s Interest in Contracts
In terms of Section 192 (2) the Directors have made the declarations required by the Companies Act No.

7 of 2007. These have been noted by the Board, recorded in the Minutes and entered in the Interest
Register which is maintained by the Company.

Directors interest in shares

In terms of Section 200 of the Companies Act, the Directors have declared that they do not hold any
shares in the Company.

Directorate
The Directors during the year under review were as follows:

1. Mr W D K Jayawardena - Chairman

2. Mrs. KU Amarasinghe - Non-Executive Director
3. Dr (Mrs) N Nanayakkara - Non-Executive Director
4. Mrs. N N P Opatha - Executive Director / CEO
5. Mr A J L Pieris - Independent Director

Retirement and Re-election of Directors

In terms of Article No 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr W D K Jayawardena retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-election. The Directors recommend that Mr W D K
Jayawardena be re-elected subject to regulatory approval.

Directors” Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of Financial Statements of the Company to reflect a
true and fair view of the state of its affairs .The Directors are of the view that the financials have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, the Companies
Act No. 7 of 2007 and amendments/additions thereto and all relevant directions of the Insurance
Regulatory Commission of Sri Lanka.

Transactions with Related Parties
The Directors have disclosed transactions, if any, that could be classified as related party transactions
in terms of LKAS 24.



Related Party Transactions are disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial Statements. The Directors hereby
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and information available to them, the Company has
complied with the requirements of the rules relating to related party transactions.

Going Concern
The Directors believe that the Company is able to continue its operations in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the financial statements are prepared on the basis that the Company is a going concern.

Shareholding Structure

The Stated Capital of the Company as at 31%t December 2023 amounted to Rs. 1,350,000,000/- divided
into 135,000,000 ordinary voting shares.

Significant Accounting Policies
The Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements and any changes thereof
where applicable have been included in the Notes to the financial statements.

Statutory Payments and Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, all taxes, duties and levies payable by the
company, all contributions, levies and taxes payable on behalf of and in respect of the employees of the
Company as at the reporting date have been paid, or where relevant, provided for in the Financial
Statements.

The Company has not engaged in any activity that contravenes any applicable law or regulation, and
to the best of the knowledge of the Directors the Company has been in compliance with all prudential
requirements, regulations and laws.

Internal Control
The Board has reviewed the internal controls covering financial, operational compliance and risk
management and has obtained reasonable assurance of its effectiveness.

Auditors
The Board recommends that Deloitte Partners (Formerly known as PricewaterhouseCoopers) be re-
appointed Auditors of the Company for the ensuing financial year at a fee to be agreed by the Board.

BY ORDER OF BOA(RD

Director/

10t June 2024
Rajagiriya
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of LOLC Life Assurance Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Our opinion

We have audited the financial statements of LOLC Life Assurance Limited (the Company). The financial
statements of the Company comprise:

» the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended:

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (“CA Sri Lanka Code of Ethics”). We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the CA Sri Lanka Code of Ethics.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report of the board and the supplementary statements of the life assurance fund
disclosed on pages 10 and 11 but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

€5 Manoharan FCA, T U Jayasinghe FCA, H PV Lakdeva FCA, K M D R P Manatunga ACA, LA C Tillekeratne ACA, M D B Boyagoda FCA,
N R Gunasekera FCA W DA S U Perera ACA, D C Al Yapa ACA, Minfaz Hilmy FCA

Repd. Office: P.O. Box 918, 100 Braybrooke Place, Colombo 02, S Lanka. Reg. No. w/4179
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of LOLC Life Assurance Limited (Contd)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (Contd)
Other information

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAUSs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of LOLC Life Assurance Limited (Contd)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (Contd)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (Contd)

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e [valuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.



Deloitte. Page 4

Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of LOLC Life Assurance Limited (Contd)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by section 163 (2] of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the
Information and explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our
examination, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company. The accounting records of
LOLC Life Assurance Limited have also been maintained by the management in the manner required by
the rules made by the Insurance Regulatory Commission of Sri Lanka established under the Regulation of
Insurance Industry Act, No. 43 of 2000 so as to clearly indicate the true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company.

P/SL\“.H Av Al v)

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
coLomBoO
31 March 2024




LLOLC Life Assurance Limited

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As ot 31st December 2023

2023 2022

MNote Rs. Rs.
Assets
Property and equipment 3 12,089,404 15,215,647
Right-ol-use assels 4 33,341,968 65,968,754
Intangible assets 5 12,943,825 9,492 387
Deferred tax assets 34 9, 185,867 a0, 185,867
Investmenis in associale 6 849,550,000 89,550,000
Investment securitics 7 14,264,693,066 9,094,242.616
Policyholder and other loans 8 100,124,144 £9.814,563
Reinsurance receivables 9 62,149 588 60,236,644
Premiums receivable 1] 565,279,748 406,794,443
Amounts due from related partics 11 1,305 25,604,463
Onher assels 12 77.683.712 45,845,910
Cash and bank balances 13.1 401,616,830 341,063,125
Total assets 15,710,764,457 10,334,014,421
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Stated capital 14 1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000
Retained earnings 2,807,535.711 1,868,560,307
Restricted regulatory reserve 15.1 256,134,380 256,134,380
Available for sale reserve 15.2 332,912,537 (398,115,348)
Other reserve 15.3 14,130,383 14,130,383
Total ordinary shareholders' equity 4.760,713,011 3,090,709,722
Liabilities
Insurance contract labilities - Life insurance 16 9,529,588,904 6,074,044,114
Interest bearing borrewings 17 141,634,769 150,854,072
Lease linbilitics 4 87,842,908 118,718,010
Letirement benefit obligations 18 20,292 528 22,228,004
Reinsurance credilors 19 117,563,378 138,219,473
Amounts due to refated partics 20 155,960,925 63,856,895
Other habilities 21 856,903,232 652,909,850
Income tax liability 1,896,349 1,896,349
Bank overdraft 13.2 38,368,453 20,577,912
Total liabilities 10,050,051,446 7,243,304,699
Taotal liabilities and equity 13,710,764,457 10,334,014,421

These Financial

Mrs. 8. 8. Kotakadeniy
Chicl Financial Ofetr - LOLC Group

['he board of directors is responsible for these Financial Statements,

Signed for and on behalf of the Board by:

ments are prepared in compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

N e U L

A J Luxman Pefris - Mrs. K2 Amarasinghe
Director Director
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The accounting policies and notes on pages 12 through 63 form an integral part of the Nnancial statements,

31 Murch 2024
Rajagiriya (Greater Colombo)



LOLC Life Assurance Limited

STATEMENT OF INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2023

Ciross written premium
Premium ceded to reinsurers

Net written premium

(ther income

Investment income

- Interest income from available-for-sale financial assets

- Interest income from loans and receivables

- Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Fees and commission income

Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale investments
Other income

Total other income

Total income
Benefits, claims and expenses

Insurance claims and benefits (net)
Underwriting and net acquisition costs
Other operating and administrative expenses
Finance costs

Total benefits, losses and expenses

Increase in provision for insurance contract liability

Profit before income tax expense
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Basic earnings per share

The accounting policies and notes on pages 12 through 65 form an integral part of the financial statements.

S

MNote

221
222

23
23

23
24

25

26
27
28
29

31

321

2023 2022
Rs. Rs,
5,575,626,060 4.961,325,527
(310,636,032) (275,448,612)
5,264,990,028 4,685,876,915
1,018,030,914 637,341,575
768,336,439 546,520,149
79,384,193 30,003,811
6,365,501 7,603,790
12,669,463 212,809
48,206,417 20,347,021
1,932,992,927 1,242,029,155
7,197,982,955 5,927,906,070

(2,527,262,465)

(1,555,159,401)

(248,654,149) (369,171,799}
(1,835,704,095) (1,614,951,136)
(33,801.615) (26,228,087)
(4,645,422 324) (3,565,510,423)

(1,613,585,227)

(1,343,329,419)

938 975,404

1,019,066,228

038,975,404

1,019,066,228

6.94

7.55




LOLC Life Assurance Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2023

Note
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gratuity - actuarial gain/(loss) - Life assurance 18.2
Transferred to Life fund - actuarial gain/(loss) on gratuity

Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss

et gain/(loss) on available-for-sale assets - Life insurance - unrealized
Transferred to life fund -Net gain/(loss) on available-for-sale assets - unrealized
et gain/(loss) on available-for-sale assets - Life shareholders - unrealized

Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax

Tuotal comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

The accounting policies and notes on pages 12 through 635 form an integral part of the financial statements.

s

2023 2022

Rs. Rs.
938,975,404 1,019,066,228
(206,656) 1,762,325
206,656 (1,762,325)
1,748,913,097  (1.526,752,969)
(1,748,913,097)  1,526,752,969
731,027,885 (330,173,432)
731,027,885 (330,173.432)
731,027,885 (330,173,432)
1,670,003 289 688,892,796




LOLC Life Assurance Limited

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 December 2013

MNote Stated Reserve on Retained Restricted Other Total
Capital available for sale Earnings regulatory reserve Equity
financial assets reseTve
Hs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

As st 01 January 2022 1,350,000,000 (67,941 ,9146) £49.494 070 256,134,380 14,130,343 2401 816526
Frofit for the year - - 1,019 066,228 - - 1,019 066,228
Other comprebensive loss - (330,173 432y - - - {330,173 4323
Total comprehensive income

for the year - (330,173,432 1.019.066,228 - - 688,892,794
As at 31 December 2022 1,350,000,000 (398.115.348) 1,868 560,307 256,134 380 14,130,383 3,090,700 722
Profit for the year - - 938,975,404 - - 9IROTI A
Other comprehensive Joss - 731,027,885 - - - 731,027,885
Tatal comprehensive income

for the year - 731,027,885 938,575,404 . - 1670003 285
As at 31st December 2023 1,350,000,000 332,912,537 2807535711 256,134,380 14,130,383 4,760.713.011

The accounting policies and notes on pages 12 through 65 form an integral part of the financial stalements

-8-



LLOLC Life Assurance Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Premium received from policy holders

Reinsurance premiums (net of commission) paid
Claims, benefits and expenses paid

Reinsurance receipts in respect of claims and benefits
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

Lease Interest

Payments to brokers and agents

Interest received from policy loans and cash at bank
Other operating cash payments

Cash flows generated from operating activities

Income tax paid

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of other investments

Proceeds from financial investments

Interest received

Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Principal element of lease payments
Repayment of/(proceeds from) long term borrowings

Net cash flows generated from financing activities

Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2023 2022
Note Rs. Rs.

5,599,432 549 4,853,209,722
(297,679,772) (243.231,532)
(2,603,258,576) (1,691,365,194)

170,840,662 116,381,332
(518,842, 500) (504,759,988)
(15,285,122) (14,249,880)
(452,714,119) {521,491,646)

32,115,831 23,774,824
(967,346,155) (930,506,657)

047,262,798 1,067,760,981

047,262,798 1,067,760,981
(7,807,443 ,265) (5,601,519,261)

5,245 488,721 31,544,443.514

1,808,215,586 [,200,511,133
(10,001,585) (2,704, 466)
3 (2,938,500) (7,559.676)

3 43 454 15,000
(766,635,889) (866,813,756)
(12,758,962) (12,058,729)

(9,219,304) 72,652,960

(21,978,266) 60,594,231

158,648,643 261,541,456

961,978,334 700,436,878

13 1,120,626,977 961,978,334
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LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

1.1

12

1.3

2.1.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Reporting entity

LOLC Life Assurance Limited (“Company”) is an unquoted public company incorporated on 03 March 2010
and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered office of the Company is located at No.100/1, Sri Jayewardenepura
Mawatha, Rajagiriya, Sri Lanka and the principal place of business is situated at the No.481, T. B. Jayah
Mawatha, Colombo 10.

Principle activities and nature of operation

The principal activity of the Company is Life assurance business.

Parent entity and ultimate parent entity

The Company's immediate parent is LOLC Asset Holdings Limited and ultimate parent undertaking is LOLC
Holding PLC,

Date of authorization for issue

The financial statements of LOLC Life Assurance Limited as at 31 December 2023 were authorized for issue

by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2024. The directors have the power to amend and reissue the financigl
statements,

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards, which comprise Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standards (“SLFRS"s), Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards (“LKAS”s), relevant interpretations of the Standing Interpretations Committee (“SI1C"),
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) and comply with the Companies Act
No. 07 of 2007 and the requirements of the Regulation of Insurance Industry Act No. 43 of 2000. Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards further comprises of Statements of Recommended Practices (SoRPs), Statements of
Alternate Treatments (SoATs) and Financial Reporting Guidelines issued by the Institute of Charlered
Accountants of 8ri Lanka. These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value, The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates, It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where are
significant to the Company's financial statements are disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial statements,

The amendments to the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards that are relevant for the preparation of the Company’s
financial statements have been adopted by the Company (a) new standards and amendments that are effective
for the first time for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2023 (ie year ending 31 December 2023) and

(b) forthcoming requirements, being standards and amendments that will become effective on or after 1
January 2024

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and applied consistently with no

adjustments being made for inflationary factors affecting the financial statements, except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position.

Insurance contract liability is based on actuarially determined values,

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value.

*  Defined benefit obligations are actuarially valued and recognized at the present value, .
42 // (
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LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

(a)

(b)

(¢)

(d)

New standards and amendments — applicable for the first time for periods commencing 1 January 2023

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for its annual reporting
period commencing | January 2023:

Amendments to LKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and SLFRS practice statement 2 making
materiality judgments - Disclosure of accounting policies

The amendments change the requirements in LKAS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting policies. The
amendments replace all instances of the term *significant accounting policies” with ‘material accounting policy
information’. Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general-purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in LKAS | are alse amended to clarify that accounting policy information that
relates to immaterial (ransactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and need not be disclosed.
Accounting policy information may be material because of the nature of the related transactions, other events
or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information relating to
material transactions, other events, or conditions is itself material,

The IASB has also developed guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the application of the *four-
step materiality process’ described in SLFRS Practice Statement 2.

Amendments fo LKAS 12 Income taxes - Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
simgle transaction

The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition exemption. Under the amendments,
an entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences may arise on initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Following the amendments to LKAS 12, an entity is required to recognise the related deferred tax asset and
liability, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the recoverability criteria in LKAS 12,

Amendments to LKAS 12 Income taxes—International tax reform—Pillar two model rules

The IASB amends the scope of LKAS 12 to clarify that the Standard applies to income taxes arising from tax
law enacted or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules published by the OECD,
including tax law that implements qualified domestic minimum top-up taxes described in those rules.

The amendments introduce a temporary exception to the accounting requirements for deferred taxes in LKAS

I2 50 that an entity would neither recognise nor disclose information about deferred tax assets and liabilities
related to Pillar Two income taxes.

Following the amendments, the group is required to disclose that it has applied the exception and to disclose
separately its current tax expense {income) related to Pillar Two income taxes.

Amendments to LKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors—Definition
of Accounting Estimates

‘The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting

estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty™. The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted.

=13s




LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

New standards and amendments issued but not effective or early adopted in 2023

The following standards and interpretations have been issued but are not mandatory for annual reporting

periods ending 31 December 2023, Further, the Company has not early adopted these new standards and/or
amendments.

With the exception of SLFRS 9 Financial Instruments and SLFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, the application of
new standards and amendments and interpretations to existing standards that have been published but are not
yet effective are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's accounting palicies or financial
statements in the financial period of initial application.

(a) SLFRS 9 Financial Instruments and associated amendments to various other standards

SLFRS 9 replaces the multiple classification and measurement models in LKAS 39 Financial [nstruments;

Recognition and measurement with a single model that has initially only two classification categories:
amortised costand fair value.

Classification of debt assets will be driven by the entity’s business mode! for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. A debt instrument is measured at
amortised cost if: a) the objective of the business model is to hold the financial asset for the collection of the

contractual cash flows, and b) the contractual cash flows under the instrument solely represent payments of
principal and interest.

All other debt and equity instruments, including investments in complex debt instruments and equity
investments, must be recognised at fair value.

All fair value movements on financial assets are taken through the statement of income, except for equity
investments that are not held for trading, which may be recorded in the statement of income or in reserves
(without subsequent recycling to profit or loss).

For financial liabilities that are measured under the fair value option entities will nead to recognise the part

of the fair value change that is due to changes in their own credit risk in other comprehensive income rather
than profit or loss.

The new hedge accounting rules align hedge accounting more closely with common risk management
practices, As a general rule, it will be easier to apply hedge accounting going forward, The new standard also
introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.

Further changes were introduced to the classification and measurement rules and also introduced a new
impairment model to SLFRS 9. The changes introduce:

i a third measurement category (FVOCI) for certain financial assets that are debt instruments

ii. a new expected credit loss (ECL) model that involves a three-stage approach whereby financial assets
move through the three stages as their credit quality changes. The stage dictates how an entity measures
impairment loss and applies the effective interest rate method. A simplified approach is permitted for
financial assets that do not have a significant financing component (e.g., trade receivables). On initial
recognition, entities will record a day-1 loss equal to the 12-month ECL (or lifetime ECL for trade
receivables), unless the assets are considered credit impaired.

The Company has adopted Amendments to SLFRS 4 - Applying SLFRS 9 Financial Instruments with SLFRS

4 Insurance Contracts which allows the Company to apply temporary exemption from SLFRS 9 until new
insurance standards become effective,

Amendment to SLFRS 4 which addresses the coneerns of insurance companies about the different effective
dates of SLFRS 9 Financial instruments and the forthcoming new insurance contracts standard. The
amendment provides two different solutions for insurance companies: & temporary exemption from SLFRS

9 for entities that meet specific requirements (applied at the reporting entity level), and the *overlay ap[:- ch'.
Both approaches are optional. s =
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LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

SLFRS 4 (including the amendments) will be superseded by the forthcoming new insurance contracts
standard, Accordingly, both the temporary exemption and the ‘overlay approach’ are expected to cease to be
applicable when the new insurance standards become effective.

The Company meets the specific requirements to apply the temporary exemption from SLFRS 9 as noted
below and Company selected the option of temporary exemption from SLFRS 9,

1) The Company’s insurance-related liabilities are less than 0% but greater than 80% of the total liabilities
of the Company; and

ii) The Company is only involved in the Life Assurance businesses as noted in the Principle activities and
nature of the operation (Note 1.2) section and does not hold assets or liabilities relating to business activities
other than the principle business activities of the Company,

Disclosures to provide comparability

Financial assets that meet the SPPI test, Solely Payment of Principal and Interest (excluding the financial
assets that meet the definition of held for trading and evaluated on a fair value basis).

[nstrument Current 2023 2022
Classification | Carrying Fair value Carrying value | Fair value
value under under LKAS
LEKAS 39 39
Rs, Rs. Rs. Rs.

Treasury bonds AFS 8,874 136428 | 8 874,136,428 4,428,312,650 | 4,428,312,650
Repurchase
ggreements L&R 757,378,600 757,378,600 641,493,141 641,493 141
Debentures LéR 1,965,182,263 | 1,965,182 263 2,079,560,190 | 2,079,560,190
Commercial papers L&R 1,679,566,373 | 1,679,566,373 1,637,038,334 | 1,637,038,334
Assets backed
Securities L&R 51,136,986 51,136,986 51,123,288 51,123,288
Term deposits L&R 438,408,223 | 438.408,223 256,715,013 256,715,013

All other financial assets (that meet the definition of held for trading or managed and evaluated on a fair value

basis).
Instrument Current 2023 2022
Classification | Carrying Fair value Carrying value | Fair value
value under under LKAS
LKAS 39 39
} Rs, Rs, Rs. Rs.
Held for
Unit trusts trading 498,884,193 | 498,884,193 - -




LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

{b) SLFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts®

SLFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 as a replacement for SLFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, It requires a current

measurement model where estimates are remeasured in each reporting period. Contracts are measured using
the building blocks of:

+ discounted probability-weighted cash flows

+ an explicit risk adjustment, and

* a contractual service margin (CSM) representing the uneamned profit of the contract which is recognised as
revenue over the coverage period.

The standard allows a choice between recognising changes in discount rates either in the statement of profit
or loss or directly in other comprehensive income. The choice is likely to reflect how insurers account for
their financial assets under SLFRS 9. An optional, simplified premium allocation approach is permitted for
the liability for the remaining coverage for short-duration contracts, which are often written by non-life
insurers. There is a modification of the general measurement model called the *variable fee approach’ for
certain contracts written by life insurers where policyholders share in the returns from underlying items.
When applying the variable fee approach, the entity’s share of the fair value changes of the underlying items
is included in the CSM. The results of insurers using this model are therefore likely to be less volatile than
under the general model. The new rules will affect the financial statements and key performance indicators
of all entities that issue insurance contracts or investment contracts with discretionary participation features.

Targeted amendments made in July 2020 aimed to ease the implementation of the standard by reducing
implementation costs and making it easier for entities to explain the results from applying SLFRS 17 to
investors and others. The amendments also deferred the application date similar to SLFRS 17.

Further amendments made in December 2021 added a transition option that permits an entity to apply an
optional classification overlay in the comparative period(s) presented on the initial application of SLFRS 17.
The classification overlay applies to all financial assets, including those held in respect of activities not
connected to contracts within the scope of SLFRS 17. It allows those assets to be classified in the comparative
period(s) in a way that aligns with how the entity expects those assets to be classified on the initial application
of SLFRS 9. The classification can be applied on an instrument-by-instrument basis,

This standard will be effective from 01 January 2026 in Sri Larka.

(c) Amendments to LKAS I Presentation of Financial Statements—Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

The amendments to LKAS 1 published in January 2020 affect only the presentation of liabilities as current or
noncurrent in the statement of financial position and not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset,
liability, income, or expenses, or the information disclosed about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period, and specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability, explain that rights are in
existence if’ covenants are complied with at the end of the reporting period, and introduce a definition of

‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments,
other assels or services,

The amendments are applied reirospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with
early application permitted. The IASB has aligned the effective date with the 2022 amendments to LKAS 1.
If an entity applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period, it is also required to apply the 2022 amendments
early. The directors of the company anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact
on the company's financial statements in future periods.




LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

{d) Amendments to LKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements—Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

(€)

The amendments specify that only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before the end of
the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting date (and therefore must be considered in assessing the classification of the liability as current or
noncurrent),

Such covenants affect whether the right exists at the end of the reporting period, even if compliance with the
covenant is assessed only after the reporting date (e.g. a covenant based on the entity’s financial position at
the reporting date that is assessed for compliance only after the reporting date).

The IASB also specifies that the right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date is not affected if an entity only has to comply with a covenant after the reporting period.
However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with covenants
within twelve months after the reporting period, an entity discloses information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk of the liabilities becoming repayable within twelve months after the reporting
period. This would include information about the covenants (including the nature of the covenants and when
the entity is required to comply with them), the carrying amount of related liabilities and facts and
circumstances, if any, that indicate that the entity may have difficulties complying with the covenants.

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2024,
Earlier application of the amendments is permitted. [f an entity applies the amendments for an earlier period,
it is also required to apply the 2020 amendments early.

The directors of the company anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact on the
company's financial statements in future periods.

Amendments to LKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and SLFRS 7 Financial Instruments; Disclosures—
Supplier Finance Arrangements

The amendments add a disclosure objective to LKAS 7 stating that an entity is required to disclose information
about its supplier finance arrangements that enables users of financial statements to assess the effects of those
arrangements on the entity’s liabilities and cash flows. In addition, SLFRS 7 was amended to add supplier
finance arrangements as an example within the requirements to disclose information about an entity’s exposure
to concentration of liquidity risk.

The term “supplier finance arrangements’ is not defined. Instead, the amendments describe the characteristics
of an arrangement for which an entity would be required to provide the information.

To meet the disclosure objective, an entity will be required to disclose in aggregate for its supplier finance
arrangements:

a. The terms and conditions of the arrangements

b. The carrying amount, and associated line items presented in the entity’s statement of financial position,
of the liabilities that are part of the arrangements

c. The carrying amount, and associated line items for which the suppliers have already received payment
from the finance providers

d. Ranges of payment due dates for both those financial liabilities that are part of a supplier finance
arrangement and comparable trade payables that are not part of a supplier finance arrangement

g. Liquidity risk information

The amendments, which contain specific transition reliefs for the first annual reporting period in which an

entity applies the amendments, are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024. Earlier application is permitted.

=}7-




LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

(0

(g)

2.1.6

Amendment to SLFRS 16 Leases—Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments to SLFRS 16 add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions
that satisfy the requirements in SLFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. The amendments require the seller-
lessee to determine ‘lease payments’ or ‘revised lease payments’ such that the seller-lessee does not recognise
a gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee, after the commencement date.

The amendments do not affect the gain or loss recognised by the seller-lessee relating to the partial or full
termination of a lease. Without these new requirements, a seller-lessee may have recognised a gain on the right
of use it retains solely because of a remeasurement of the lease liability (for example, following a lease
maodification or change in the lease term) applying the general requirements in SLFRS 16. This could have

been particularly the case in a leaseback that includes variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or rate,

As part of the amendments, the IASB amended an Illustrative Example in SLFRS 16 and added a new example
o illustrate the subsequent measurement of a right-of-use asset and lease liability in a sale and leaseback
transaction with variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate. The illustrative examples also

clarify that the liability, that arises from a sale and leaseback transaction that qualifies as a sale applying SLFRS
15, is a lease liability.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, Earlier

application is permitted, [fa seller-lessee applies the amendments for an earlier period, it is required to disclose
that fact,

A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with LKAS 8 to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application, which is defined as the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applied SLFRS 16.

SLFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards

In June 2023, the International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB) released its first two sustainability
disclosure standards:

a. SLFRS 51 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information (General
Requirements standard), and

b. IFRS 52 Climate-related Disclosures (Climate standard)

The SLFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards are structured using the Task Force on Climate related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD framework) four-pillar approach, which covers povernance,

stralegy, risk management, and metrics and targets.

SLFRS 51 and SLFRS 52 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025, with
early adoption permitted.

Funectional and presentation currency

The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupee (LKR), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. All financial information presented in Sri Lankan Rupee has been rounded to the nearest Rupee
unless stated otherwise.

Com parative information

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and, are consistent with those used in
the previous year.

[ '
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LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.1.10

2.1.11

2.2

Materiality and aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar
nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.

Offsetting

Assets and liabilities, and income and expenses, are not offset unless required or permitted by SLFRSs.

Going concern

The Board of Directors is satisfied that the Company has adequate resources fo continue its operations in the
foreseeable future and going-concern basis has been adopted in preparing these Financial Statements.

Supplementary statements of the life assurance fund

Fund together with the notes are disclosed in pages number 9 and 10 continuing the past practice which was a
requirement of the Statement of Recommended Practice (SoRP) for Insurance Contracts then applicable,
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka). These supplemental statements
do not form part of the Audited annual financial statements,

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial Statements
in accordance with the basis of preparation as per Note 2.1.1.

This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free¢ from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances,

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENT

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with SLFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results which form the basis of making the judgments
about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the following notes to these financial
slatements.

% 7 ) )



LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

a)

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities (Note 16)

The liability for life insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation features
(DPF) is based either on current assumptions or on assumptions established at the inception of the contract,
reflecting the best estimate at the time increased with a margin for risk and adverse deviation. All contracts are
subject to a liability adequacy test, which reflect management’s best current estimate of future cash flows. The
main assumptions used relate to mortality, morbidity, longevity, investment retumns, expenses, lapse and
surrender rates and discount rates. The Company bases mortality and morbidity on standard industry mortality
tables which reflect historical experiences, adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Company’s unique risk
exposure, product characteristics, target markets and own claims severity and frequency experiences. For those
contracts that insure risk related to longevity, prudent allowance is made for expected future mortality
improvements, as well as wide ranging changes to life style, could result in significant changes to the expected

future mortality exposure,

Estimates are also made as to future investment income arising from the assets backing life insurance contracts.

These estimates are based on current market returns, as well as expectations about future economic and
financial developments.

Assumptions on future expense are based on current expense levels, adjusted for expected expense inflation,
if appropriate.

Lapse and surrender rates are based on the Company’s historical experience of lapses and surrenders. Discount
rates are based on current industry risk rates, adjusted for the Company's own risk exposure.

The carrying value at the reporting date of life insurance contract liabilities is Rs. 9,529,588,904 (2022 — Rs.
6,074,044,114).

Assumptions

The following reserving assumptions have been used for the purpose of the annual statutory valuation as at 31
December 2023;

Mortality rates

The following best estimate assumptions have been used as at 3| December 2023:

Mortality Table All products Isurushana Credit Life Life Family
except (DTA/MRP) Takaful
Isurusahana and
DTA/MRP
Age Band % of A6T 70 % of A6T 70 Munich Re MRP % of ABTITO0
Rl Rates L)
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
18-35 0% 80% 115% 115% 100% 90% 80% 80%
36-45 T0%% T0% 100%4 100% 115% 0% T0% 0%
46-55 50% 50% 80% B0% 115% 0% 50% 0%
56 and above 40% 40% 50%, 50% 115% 0% 40% 40%




LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

Rates for benefits other than mortality

Following % of RI rate used as the best estimate morbidity rate assumption

Morbidity % of the applicable
Reinsurance premium rates
2023 2022
ADB 50% 50%
Cl 40% 40% |
HB 60% 60%
PPD 30% 30% |
TPD 30% 30%
wop 40% 40%
Health Rider 100% 100%

Lapses/ Surrender

The best estimate lapse rates for “LOLC Reality” product is assumed to be 10% level for each year. Lapse
rates for other regular premium products are tabulated below,

Lapse Long Term | Dividend -ST Dividend -DM Par Products
Year Produets
2023 2022 2023 2022 | 2023 2022 2023 2022

1 61% 56% 50% 39% 48% 47% 39% 39%
2 28% 24% 19% 17% 14% 16% 14% 14%
3 22% 21% 14% 14% 24% 26% B% 8%
T 4% | 25% 17% | 18% 24% 25% 19% 19%
5 18% 18% 13% 13% 18% 18% 9% 9%
6 15% 15% 11% 11% 15% 15% 6% 6%
T 13% 11% 9% 8% 13% 11% 9% 9%
B+ 8% 8% 6% 8% 3% 8% T% 8%

Investment return

In accordance with the RBC guidelines, a risk-free interest rate curve based on Sri Lankan government bond
yields has been used for discounting liability cash flows. The yield curve as at 31 December 2023 used for
discounting the cash flows, provided by IRCSL, is tabulated below. The yields afier year 10 have been assumed
to be constant at the 10-year level,

Years to maturity Yield
2023 2022
I 12.88% 29.55%
2 14.09% 27.30%
3 14.06% 28.72%
4 13.85% 27.97%
5 14.59% 26.99%
3 14.38% 25.87%
i 7 11.03% 27.36%
8 13.42% 25.15%
9 14.63% 25.62%
10 12,93% 27.04%
L1+ 12.93% 27.04%
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b)

c)

d)

2.3

2.3.1

Provision for reinsurance

In determining the policy liabilities, the valuation makes provisions for reinsurance according to the applicable

reinsurance terms as per the agreements with reinsurers for all products and riders, except those for which UPR
are held.

For other products, allowance for reinsurance has been made by subtracting the present value of reinsurance
recoveries {calculated using prudent reserving assumptions) net of present value of reinsurance premiums from

the calculated gross reserves. The reserves net of reinsurance have been floored at zero at the individual policy
level.

Retirement benefit obligations (Note 18)

The liability for retirement gratuity is recognized based on the actuarial valuation carried out as at 31%
December 2022, using the Projected Unit Credit method. The actuarial valuations involve making assumptions
about discount rates, future salary increases and incidence of withdrawals. Due to the complexity of the
valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value of financial instruments (Note 35)

The determination of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the Statement of
Financial Position for which there is no observable market price are determined using a variety of valuation
techniques that include the use of mathematical techniques. The inputs to these models are derived from

observable market data where possible, but if this is not available, judgment is required to establish their fair
values.

Provisions for liabilities and eonlingencies

The Company receives legal claims against it in the normal course of business, Management has made
judgments as to the likelihood of any claim succeeding in making provisions. The time of concluding legal
claims is uncertain, as is the amount of possible outflow of economic benefits. Timing and cost ultimately
depend on the due process in respective legal jurisdictions.

Useful life of property and equipment and intangible assets
The Company estimates the useful life of the property and equipment and software to be at least 5 years based

on the expected usage and technical obsolescence of such assets. However, the actual useful life may be shorter
or longer than 5 years, depending on the actual usage,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control or joint control,
This is generally the case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in

associates are initially recognised at cost and subsequently measured at cost less impairment.

The Company has applied the exemption from applying the equity method to the investment in associate as
the Company meets the following:

»  The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary and its owners have been informed about, and do not object
to, the Company not applying the equity method,

9.
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*  The Company's debt or equity instruments are not traded in a public market (a domestic or foreign stock
exchange or an over-the-counter market, including local and regional markets).

*  The Company did not file, nor is it in the process of filing, its financial statements with a securities
commission or other regulatory organisation, for the purpose of issuing any class of instruments in a
public market.

* LOLC Holding PLC, the ultimate parent of the Company produces consolidated financial statements
available for public use that comply with SLFRSs, in which subsidiaries are consolidated.

When the Company ceases significant influence of an associate, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as a financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. If the
ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

Insurance contracts

As permitted by SLFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, the Company continues to apply the existing accounting
policies for Insurance Contracts that were applied prior to the adoption of SLFRS.

Product classification

SLFRS 4 requires contracts written by insurers to be classified as either “insurance contracts™ or “investment
contracts” depending on the level of insurance risk transferred. Insurance contracts are those contracts when
the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by
agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely
affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance
risk, by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not oceur. Insurance contracts
can also transfer financial risk. Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk
and no significant insurance risk. Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change in one or more of a
specified interest rate, financial instrurment price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of price or
rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the
variable is not specific to a party to the contract,

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder
of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and
obligations are extinguished or expire. Investment contracts can, however, be reclassified as insurance
contracts after inception if insurance risk becomes significant. All the products sold by the Company are
insurance contracts. Therefore, classified as insurance contracts under the SLFRS 4 — Insurance Contracts.

Thus, the Company does not have any investment contracts within its product portfolio as at the Reporting
date.

Actuarial valuation of life insurance fund

The Directors agree to the long-term insurance provision for the Company at the year-end on the
recommendations of the Independent Consultant Actary following histher annual investigation of the Life
insurance business. The actuarial valuation takes into account all liabilities and is based on assumptions
recommended by the Independent Consultant. The long-term insurance provision was valued by the appointed
Actuary — Mr. Philip Jackson,

23-
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a)

b)

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held to maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as sppropriate. The Company determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated. Financial
assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss where the Company's documented investment
strategy is to manage financial investments on & fair value basis because the related liabilities are also managed
on this basis, The available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories are used when the relevant liability
(including shareholders® funds) is passively managed and/or carried at amortised cost.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase ot sell the asset,

The Company’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables, loans and
other receivables and quoted and unquoted financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows;
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and those designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, Investments typically bought with the intention to
sell in the near future are classified as held for trading. This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by LKAS 39. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading

unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. For investments designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, the following criteria must be met:

- The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or liahilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis.

Or

- The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities, or both, which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy.

These investments are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are remeasured at
fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Fair value gains and losses’. Interest is accrued and presented
in ‘Investment income' using the effective interest rate (EIR). Dividend income is recorded in *Investment
income” when the right to the payment has been established.

The Company evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (held for trading) whether the
intent to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Company is unable to trade these [inancial
assels due to inactive markets and management's intent to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly
changes, the Company may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification
to loans and receivables, available-for-sale or held to maturity depends on the nature of the asset, This
evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value
option at designation.
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Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial investments include equity and debt securitics. Equity investments classified as
available-for-sale are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt sccurities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of

time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.

After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale reserve (equity).
Where the insurer holds more than one investment in the same security that they are deemed to be disposed of
on a first-in first-out basis. Interest earned whilst holding available-for-sale investments is reported as interest
income using the EIR. Dividends earned whilst holding available-for-sale investments are recognised in the
statement of income as ‘Investment income’ when the right of the payment has been established. When the
asset is derecognised the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in realized gain on disposal of available for sale
mvestments, or determined to be impaired, or the cumulative loss is recognised in the statement of income in
realized loss on disposal of available for sale investments and removed from the available-for-sale reserve.

The Company evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets to determine whether the ability and intention to
sell them in the near term would still be appropriate, In the case where the Company is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management's intention significantly changes to do so in the
foreseeable future, the Company may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the financial asset meets the definition of loans and
receivables and management has the intention and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity. The reclassification to held-to-maturity is permitted only when the entity has the ability and intention
to hold the financial asset until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the EIR. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of income,

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to statement of income.

Loans and other receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. These investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment. All transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are
measured at amortised cost, using the EIR, less allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in ‘investment income’' in the statement of income. Gains and losses are

recognised in the statement of income when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through
the amortisation process.

Held to maturity financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as held
to maturity when the Company has the intention and ability to hold until maturity. After initial measurement,
held to maturity financial assets are measured at amortised cost, using the EIR, less impairment, The EIR
amortisation is included in *Investment income’ in the statement of income, Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of income when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.
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c)

d)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognised when:

= The rights to receive cash Aows from the asset have expired

Or
The Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and
gither:

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset

Or

- The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement in the asset.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower

of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.

In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transfierred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses al each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated,
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation and where observable data indicate that there is a

measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Company first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar eredit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate,
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Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Contd.)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the statement of income. Interest income continues to be acerued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of investment income in the statement
of income. Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Company. If, in a subsequent
year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the ‘ather income” in
the statement of income,

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of the
Company’s internal credit grading system, which considers credit risk characteristics such as asset type,
industry, geographical location, collateral type, past-due status and other relevant factors.

Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated
on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the
historical period that do not exist currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are
directionally consistent with, changes in related observable data from year to year (such as changes in
unemployment rates, property prices, commodity prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative of
incurred losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future
cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience,

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is
objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence would include a *significant or prolonged’ decline in the
fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is to be evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. The
Company treats *significant’ generally as 20% and ‘prolonged’ generally as greater than six months, Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement
of income — is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of income.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the statement of income: increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the statement of income,

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. The interest income is recorded as part of investment income, If, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a
debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in the statement of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of
income,
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income
and expense will not be offset in the statement of income unless required or permitted by any accounting
standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. Such
financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using effective
interest rate method. The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expirad.

Financial liabilitics comprise of bank overdraft, interest bearing borrowings and other financial liabilities.
Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by
reference to quoted markel bid prices for assets and offer prices for liabilities, at the close of business on the
reporting date, without any deduction for transaction costs.

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include the discounted cash flow method, comparison
to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options pricing models, credit models and
other relevant valuation models.

Certain financial instruments are recorded at fair value using valuation techniques because current market
transactions or observable market data are not available. Their fair value is determined using a valuation model
that has been tested against prices or inputs to actual market transactions and using the Company’s best
estimate of the most appropriate model assumptions. Models are adjusted to reflect the spread for bid and ask
prices to reflect costs to close out positions, counterparty credit and liquidity spread and limitations in the
models. Also, profit or loss calculated when such financial instruments are first recorded (*Day 1" profit or
loss) is deferred and recognised only when the inputs become observable or on derecognition of the instrument.

For discounted cash flow techniques, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market-related rate for a similar instrument. The use of different pricing models
and assumptions could produce materially different estimates of fair values,

The fair value of floating rate and overnight deposits with credit institutions is their carrying value. The
carrying value is the cost of the deposit and accrued interest, The fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits

is estimated using discounted cash flow techniques. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates
for similar instruments at the reporting date,

[f the fair value cannot be measured reliably, these financial instruments are measured at cost, being the fair
value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment or the amount received on issuing the
financial liability. All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of
the investment.

Defermination of fair values

a) Financial instruments in level |

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices as at the
reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for

financial assets held by the Company is the last traded price in an active market, These instruments are included

in level 1. e
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23.5

2.3.6

b) Financial instruments in level 11

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techmiques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level I1. Instruments included in level TI comprise primarily
investments in Treasury bills and Treasury bonds issued by the Government of Sri Lanka.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include;

#« Present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield curves;

»  Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments

The table below shows the different basis used in assessing the fair value of financial instruments,

Instrument Instrument | Fair value basis and assumptions Fair wvalue
category Hierarchy
Available for sale | Treasury Valued using market prices (the bid quotes) | Level 02
instruments Bonds & | available in the market.

Bills
Fair value | Unit Trust Valued using market prices (the bid quotes) | Level 02
through  profit available in the market.
and loss

Reinsurance

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business. Reinsurance assels represent balances
due from reinsurance companies. Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner consistent with the
outstanding claims provision and are in accordance with the reinsurance contract. Reinsurance is recorded
gross in the reporting date unless a right to offset exists. Ifa reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces
the carrying amount accordingly and recognizes a loss in the statement of income.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after the
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the company may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that the company will
receive from the reinsurer. Reinsurance assets are de-recognized when the contractual rights are extinguished
or expired or the contract is transferred to another party.

Insurance receivables

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance receivables are measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. The carrying value of insurance receivables is reviewed
for impairment whenever events er circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,
with the impairment loss recorded in the statement of income.

Insurance receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criteria for financial assets, as described in
Note 2.3.3.1 (c) have been met.

Other receivables and dues from related parties

Other receivables and dues from related parties are measured on initial recognition at the fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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2.3.9

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and cash at banks and other highly liquid financial assets
which are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments with original maturities of less than
three months which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the company cash management are
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Intangible assets
Basis of recognition

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets
will flow to the entity and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably,

Basis of measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are initial recognized at cost. Following the initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful
life of intangible assets is assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite useful life are
amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life is reviewed at least at each financial year end, Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied these assets. All other expenditure is expensed when incurred.

De-recognition

Intangible assets are de-recognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use.
The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of intangible assets are measured as difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are included in the statement of income.

Amortization

Amortization is recognized in the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use.
The estimated useful life of computer software is 5 years.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Property and equipment

Basis of recognition

Property and equipment are recognized il it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset
will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

=3
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Basis of measurement
[tems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation/ impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bring the assets to
a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located and capitalized borrowing costs.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that
equipment.

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
itemns of property and equipment,

Cost model

The Company applies the cost model 1o all property, plant and equipment.; which records at eost of purchase

together with any incidental expenses thereon less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and
its cost can be measured reliably, The carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognized. The costs of the
repair and maintenance of property and equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual assets
are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, that
component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each
component of an item of property and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease

term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end
of the lease term.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is
classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is de-recognized.

Depreciation methods and useful life spans are assessed at the reporting date. The estimated useful lives for
the current year are as follows:

- Furniture and Fittings 5 Years
- Office Equipment 5 Years
- Computer equipment 5 Years
- Air Conditioners 5 Years

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the

proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment, and is recognized net
within other income/other expenses in the statement of income.
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2.3.10

Leases

The Company leases various office spaces. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 6 months
to 10 years, but may have extension options as described in Note 5.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases

of real estate for which the Company is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Company.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease payments;

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

- variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date

- amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an

asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

- where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received

- uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Company, which does not have recent third party financing, and

- makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg. term, country, currency and security,

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss

over the lease period 50 as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Ripht-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liahility

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs.
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2.3.11

23.12
a)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonahly certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and ail leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise 1T equipment and small items of office furniture.

lmpairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's Non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets' recoverable amount

is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its related Cash-Generating
Unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount,

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilized by more than one CGU.
Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and tested for impairment as part
of the testing of the CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognized in statement of income, Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs), and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount, An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Insurance contract liabilities
Insurance provision-life insurance

Life insurance liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged. These
liabilities are measured by using the gross premium method as specified by the Insurance Regulatory
Commission of Sri Lanka (IRCSL) based on the recommendation of the Independent Consultant Actuary. The
liability is determined as the sum of the discounted value of the expected future benefits, less the discounted
value of the expected future premiums that would be required to meet the future cash outflows based on the

valuation assumptions used. The liability is computed based on IRCSL specified guidelines and current
assumptions which vary based on the contract type.

Furthermore, adjustments are performed to capture the likely liabilities that may arise due to currently lapsed
contracts reviving in the future.

In the accounting policy for insurance liabilities that have been adopted for the Company, realised gains or
losses on certain assets have a direct effect on the measurement of certain related insurance assets and
liabilities. This is either because of the way that the accounting model works or because the policyholder has
a contractual right linked to realised gains and losses only. In these situations, if unrealised gains or losses on
these assets exist, the Company applies 'shadow accounting’. By applying shadow accounting, the Company
treats the impact of unrealised gains or losses on insurance assets and liabilities affected by an unrealised gain
or loss on a financial asset in the same way as the realised gain or loss on that asset. In particular, the related
adjustment to insurance liabilities is recognised in equity if the unrealised gains or losses are recognised
directly in equity. Shadow accounting is consistently applied to all those situations where realised gains and
losses on investments would influence insurance assets and/or insurance liabilities, and unrealised gains and
losses on those investments exist. Where applicable, the adjustment to insurance liabilities is recognised in a
manner consistent with the recognition of the unrealised gains and losses on the investments.
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b)

2.3.13

23.14

2.3.15

2.3.16

a)

As required by the SLFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, the Company performed a Liability Adequacy Test (LAT)
in respect of Life insurance contract liabilities with the assistance of an external actuary. In performing the
adequacy test, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows, including related cash flows such as
claims handling and policy administration expenses, policyholder options and guarantees, as well as
investment income from assets backing such liabilities, are used.

Discretionary Participation Features (DPF)

A DPF is a contractual right that gives holders of these contracts the right to receive as a supplement to
guaranteed benefits, significant additional benefits which are based on the performance of the assets held
within the DPF portfolio whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the Company. Under the
terms of the contracts, surpluses in the DPF funds can be distributed to policyholders and shareholders on a
90/10 basis. The Company has the discretion over the amount and timing of the distribution of these surpluses
to policyholders. All DPF liabilities including unallocated surpluses, both guaranteed and discretionary, at the
end of the reporting period are held within insurance or investment contract liabilities, as appropriate.

Insurance payables

Insurance payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration received less directly attributable fransaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Insurance payables are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is settled, cancelled or expired.

Other liabilities

Liabilities are recognized in the financial position when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event,
the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.

Obligations payable at the demand of the creditor within one year of the statement of financial position date
are treated as current liabilities, Liabilities payable after one year from the reporting date are treated as non-

current liabilities, They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are made for all obligations existing as at the statement of financial position date when it is probable
that such an obligation will result in an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the quantum
of the outflow. All contingent liabilities are disclosed as a note to the Financial Statements unless the outflow
of resources is remote. Contingent assets are disclosed, where inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in the statement of
income in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

i) Employees’ Provident Fund (EPF)

The Company and employees contribute 12% and 8% respectively on the salary of each employee to the above-
mentioned funds.
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b)

€)

2.3.17

a)

b)

2.3.18

ii) Employees' Trust Fund (ETF)
The Company contributes 3% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Trust Fund.

Defined benefiis plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; and discounting
that benefit to determine its present value. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified independent
actuary using the projected unit credit (PUC) method as recommended by LKAS 19 - Employee Benefits.

Actuarial gains and losses are charged or credited to other comprehensive income statement in the period in

which they arise. The assumptions based on which the results of the actuarial valuation was determined, are
included in Note 18.3 to the financial statements.

However, according to the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability for the gratuity payment to
an employee arises only on the completion of 5 years of continued service with the Company.

This retirement benefit obligation is not externally funded,

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus
if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Equity

Stated capital

Stated capital in relation to the Company means the total of all amounts received by the Company or due and
payable to the Company in respect of the issue of shares and in respect of calls on shares.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity,
net of any tax effects.

Movement of reserves
Movement of reserves is disclosed in the statements of changes in equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company,
and the revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured, Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and value added taxes.

Gross written premium

Life insurance

Gross written premiums on life insurance contracts are recognized as revenue when payable by the

policyholder. Benefits and expenses are provided against such revenue to recopnize profits over the estimated
life of the policies.

For single premium business, revenue is recognized on the date on which the policy is effective.
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2.3.19

Premium ceded to reinsurers

Gross reinsurance premiums on insurance contracts are recognized as an expense on the earlier of the date
when premiums are payable or when the policy becomes effective. Reinsurance premiums are decided based
on rates agreed with reinsurers.

Fees and commission income

Policyholders are charged for policy administration services and other contract fees, These fees are recognised
as revenue upon the issue of the insurance policies,

Interest income

Interest income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method, The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial assets or liabilities (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying
amount of the financial assets or liabilities, When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates
future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses.

The caleulation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs, fees and points paid or received that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or liability.

Other income

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis,
Benefits, claims and expenses

Life insurance business

Expenses relate to the acquisition and maintenance of Long-term insurance business. Claims by death or
maturity are charged on notification of death or on expiry of the term. Claims payable includes direct cost of
settlement. Interim payments and surrenders are accounted for at the time of settlement,

Reinsurance claims

Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance ¢laim is recognized according to the terms
of the relevant contract.

Underwriting and acquisition costs

Underwriting and acquisition costs are recognised on the same basis premium income is recognised in the
statement of income.

Other expenses

Expenses are recognized in the statement of income on the basis of a direct association between the cost
incurred and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in the ranning of the business

and in maintaining the property, plant & equipment in a state of efficiency has been charged to statement of
income in arriving at the profit for the year.

For the presentation of the statement of income the Directors are of the opinion that the nature of the expenses

method presents fairly the element of the Company’s performance, and hence such presentation method is
adopted.

Repairs and renewals are charged to the statement of income in the year in which the expenditure is incurred,
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2.3.20

2.3.21

2.3.22

Finance costs

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and impairment losses recognized on financial assets
{other than trade receivables), that are recognized in in the statement of income.

Current {ax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the Reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income and expenditure as reported in the Financial
Statements and computed in accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act. No 24 of 2017 and
subsequent amendments thereto.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the Commissioner General of Inland Revenue.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that hayve been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assels
and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The net increase in the carrying amount of deferred tax liability net of deferred tax asset is recognized as
deferred tax expense and conversely any net decrease is recognized as reversal to deferred tax expense, in the
statement of income.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency (Sri Lankan Rupees) of the
Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the
functional eurrency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is
the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for
effective interest and payments during the year, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the year.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the staternent of income on a net basis within other
income or other expenses.
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2.3.23

2.3.24

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic/ diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year,

Cash flow statement

The Cash flow statement has been prepared using the 'Direct Method' of preparing cash flows in accordance
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard LKAS 7 'statement of cash flows',
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3.1

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture & Equipment Computer Total
Fittings Hardware
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Cost
At 01 January 2022 39,698,826 28,303,662 46,478,395 114,480,883
Additions - 3,171,050 4,388,620 7,559,676
At 01 January 2023 39,698,826 31,474,712 50,867,021 122,040,559
Additions - - 2,938,800 2,938,800
As at 31st December 2023 39,698,826 31,474,712 53,805,821 124,979,359
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 January 2022 36,720,865 25,664,976 36,665,223 09,051,069
Charge for the year 1,587,732 2,180,388 4,005,723 7.773,843
AL 01 January 2023 38,308,597 27,845,364 40,670,951 106,824,912
Charge for the year 823,856 1,386,789 3,754,399 5,965,043
As at 315t December 2023 39,132,452 29,232,153 44,425,350 112,789,955
Carrying amount
As at 315t December 2023 566,373 2,242,560 9,380,471 12,189,404
As At 31 December 2022 1,390,230 3,629,347 10,196,070 15,215,647

During the financial year, the Company acquired property and equipment to the agpregate value of Rs, 2,938,800
(2022 - Rs.7,559,676). Cash payments amounting to Rs. 2,938,800 (2022 - Rs. 7,559,676) were made during the

year for purchase of property and equipment.

As at 31 December 2023, the gross carrying value of the property and equipment fully depreciated that is still in use
amounted to Rs 101,158,744 (2022 - Rs 84,740,868).

LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee.

4.1 Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position
2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
Right-of-use assels
Buildings 33,341,968 635,968,754
33,341,968 65,968,734
Movements of right-of-use assets during the year are as follows:
Balance as at 1 January 65,968,754 104,260,063
Remeasurement (21,558,832)  (20,845,587)
Depreciation during the year (11,067.954)  (17,445,322)
As at 3181 December 33,341,968 5,968,754
Lease liabilities N,
Current "ﬁ 25,682,047 25,221,874
Mon-current I _,Jf'n 62,159,961 03,496,136
l\ ’ §7.842,908 118,718,010
b . "
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4 LEASES (Contd...)

Movements of lease liabilities during the year are as follows: 2023 2022
Balance as at 1 January 118,718,010 148,665,101
Remeasurement (21,558,832)  (21,951,954)
Payments during the year (24,601,392) (22,245,017}
Interest for the year 15,285,122 14,249,880
As at 315t December 87,842 908 118,718,010
4.2 Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

2023 2022

Rs. Rs.

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets -Buildings 11,067,954 17,445,322
Interest expense (included in finance cost) 15,285,122 14,249 880
The total cash outflow for leases were, 24,601,392 22,245,017

4.3 Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and not by the respective lessor.

4.4 Critical judgements in determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option, Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

For leases of buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

- If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the group is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate).

- If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the group is typically
reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

- Otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and
business disruption required to replace the leased asset.

As at 31 December 2023, potential future cash outflows of all lease liabilities have been included in the lease

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Company becomes obliged to
exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if & significant avent or a
significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

- 40 -



LLOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2023 2022
Rs. Rs
Computer software
Cost
Balance as at 1 January 78,443 928 75,739,462
Additions 10,001,585 2,704,466
As at 31st December 88,445,513 78,443,928
Amortization and impairment losses
Balance as at 1 January 68,951,541 63,511,484
Charge for the year 6,545,147 5,440,057
As at 31st December 75,496,688 68,951,541
Carrying amount
As at 3 1st December 12,048,825 0,492 387

5.1 During the financial period, the Company acquired intangible assets to the aggregate value of Rs. 10,001,585 (2022 -
Rs. 2,704,446). Cash payments amounting to Rs. 10,001,585 (2022 - Rs. 2,704,446) were made during the year for
the purchase of intangible assets.
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6 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATE

Name of entity Place of Principal Noof  Noof Holding % Cost Cost
husiness / aclivities shares shares
country of
incorporation
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
Serendib Kingdom of  Life and 450,000 450,000 45% @ 45% 89,550,000 89,550,000
Microinsurance Cambodia Non-Life

Plc I-nsu_mnce 89,550,000 89,550,000

In June 2021, The Company invested in 45% voting shares of Serendib Microinsurance Fle (SMIPLC).

The Company has applied the exemption from applying the equity method to the investment in associate. Company's
ultimate parent LOLC Holdings PLC with its registered office in No. 100/1, Sri Jayawardenapura Mawatha, Rajagiriya
produces consolidated financial statements which includes LOLC Life Assurance Limited and Serendib Microinsurance

Ple.

2023 2022
Summarized financial information of investments in associate
For the year ended 31 December Rs. Rs.
Revenue 1,123,512,107 4724 966,808
Net change in reserves for uneamned premium (365,185,581)  (215,456,123)
Net earned premium 758,326,526 209,510,685
Other income 3,807,992 1,328,635
Investment income 33,662,185 5,538,292
Benefits, claims and expenses
Insurance claims and benefits (net) (313,599.237) (99,400,282)
Underwriting and net acquisition costs (248,307,703 (63,518,104}
Other operating and administrative expenses (220,620,269) (98,627,891)
Interest expenses (171,212) (256,364)
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense 13,098,282 (45,425,030)
Income tax expenses (56,315,847) (21,262,030)
Loss after taxation (43,217,565) (66,687,060)
As at 31 December

2023 2022

Rs. Rs.

Total assets 1,395,354 918 427,267,673
Total liabilities 1,332,316,753 301,538,231
Met assels 63,038,165 125,729,442
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71

711

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Aviilable for-sale investment securities
Lozne and receivables
Fair valve through profit or [oss

Available-for-sale investmeat securities

Governmenl sacurities

Clovernment Securities

Treasury bonds
Treasury bills

7..2  The Company uses the Level 02 input 10 fair value the ahove finandial assets,

Description

réa bonds - ter pa

FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAFITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES FLC
SEYLAN BANK

SEYLAN BANK
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
ACUITY SECURITIES LIMITED
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASLUIRIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES rLC
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITEDR
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLU
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
ACUITY SECURITIES LIMITED
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC

LEBOLGRSC ST
LERO1S528I017

LKBO1528I017

LEBOIS28017

LKBOIS30E]52
LKBO1025CL57
LEBOI326H01L
LEBO1226F014
LEBOOE2TIISZ

LEBO1628G019
LEBOLO26HO 14
LEBOLOZRCIS1
LEBOI528E016
LEBOI02TL 154
LEBU1533A 134
LEBUISI3A134
LKBO1333A054
LKBG1032G014
LKBOI032GO14
LEROM42ZEELS4
LEBOD426ELS
LEBOOSZTEOS
LERG0T22G156
LKBOO729G 136
LKBO0423F013
LEBOD729G 156
LEBO1530E]S2
LEBOIS30ELS2
LEBOIO3ZGOIS
LEBO0426E1 54
LERBOOS27I050

LKBO10320G014
LKBO0423FOLY
LEBOIS2EEDLG
LEBOIS28E016
LEBD1S22EDTG
LKBO152RED16
LEBOOS2TEDD
LKBOOS2TERIS
LEBOGS2TE0S
LEBOOTIHG]56
LKBOOT29G 156
LEROOT29G 56
LEBOOTISG 1SS
LKBO0SIIEISD
| KBOD4TSFOT3
[LKBOO4ZSFOLY
LEROO425F013

2023 022
Note Rs. Hs.
71 5874,136428 4,428,312,650
732 4 B916T2445 4 663 9249 366
73 408 584,193 -
14,264 693 066 9,094 242,616
7Ll B A74, 136478 4 428,312,650
B,874,136,418 4,428,312 650
2023 012
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Hs. Rs. Rs. Hs.
8546 492 452 8.827301,154 6 A64 534,072 4 418,312,650
46,661 550 46835274 - .
§,593, 156,002 7,874,116 428 6,654,534 072 4 428 112,650
Cost Duration Coupon Rate Yield Fair Valoe
Hs. s,
204,054, 400 10 Years 10.25% 10.25% 198,737,789
104,165 800 13 Years 10 98 11.500% 04135613
52012950 13 Years 11.00% 11.50% 47,167 807
52,188,150 13 Years 10.95% 11.50%% 47,167 807
47 862 S0 15 Years 11.83% 11003 BE 631,676
192,064,000 10 Years [1.35% 10.25% 198,757,789
36T 077,766 5112 Yonry 6.60% 0.00% 304 352,646
122,630,700 6 Years 6. 65% 11 00% 95,171,337
59,743,300 T 13 Yeurs T.19% 10,20% 45,824,604
135,517,600 7 Years 7.08% 9.00% 263,503,620
60,429 600 5 Years TAR% 11.50% 49 786,971
257,882,290 7 Years RO 10.75% 204,702 623
106,335,300 T Year: 2.20% Q0% §35,158,681
4R, 958050 5 Years 12.00% 11,25% 46,202,332
45,342,100 L1 Years 12.90% 11.20% 44 058,138
45,7147 050 11 Years 12.75% 11.20% 44 958 138
45 476,500 11 Years 12.85% 11.20% 44 958,138
18,834,550 4 Years 25.00% 18.00% 63,741,334
41432650 9 Years 22.95% 18.00% 63,741,334
B0, 560,900 3 Years 22, 30% 25 0% 121,147,897
0 846400 3 Years 22.50% 26,85% 121,147,897
£3,059,200 5 Years 2R.07% 18.00% 113,610,860
17,9495 &30 7 Years 28.00% 20.00% 65,821,244
37,694,750 7 Years I8.25% 20.00% 65,821,244
£8,445 300 3 Years 22.50% 17.00% 105,669,173
133,728 000 6 Years 14.00% 20,00 131,642 489
42,183 600 7 Years 15.20% 11008 44,315,813
85,103 200 T Years 15 0% 1100 88,631 626
3,190,965 & Years 13.03% 180004 82,863,714
63,117,350 3 Years 13.50% 32.50% 60,573,949
59,334,350 5 Years 14,73% 20.00% 61,565,026
191,189,850 8 /2 Years 14.15% | 8.00% 91,224,001
B8 934 700 3 Years 22.25% 17.00% 105,669,173
712,670,600 7 Years 5 2% 00 170,317,363
106, 138 600 7 Years 8.02% G 00% 85,158,681
104,858,847 7 Years B 04% 9.00% 84,201,498
106,134,900 7 Years 803% G.00% £S5, 158,681
26,381,900 5 Years 22.15% 18.00% 113,610,860
£7,038,100 5 Years 23.50% 18 00%% 113,610,860
259,183,500 5 Years 23 00% 18.00% 340,832,580
40,213,100 T Years 26,25% 20,00% 65,820,244
40,546,250 T Years 26.00% 20.00% 65 821 244
41,822,500 7 Years 25 00%% 20,00% 65,821,244
41,571,750 7 Years 3529% 20.00% £5 821,244
45,178,800 @ Years 21.00% 18.00% 59,637,839
43,155,200 3 Years 24 5000 17.00% 52,834,587
44 767 400 3 Years 22.75% 17.00% 52 834,387
44 295 600 3 Years 23.25% 17.00% 52,834 587

A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2022

T

T2

73

INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Contd...}

Description

Treasury bonds - coumter party
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
ACUITY SECURITIES LIMITED
ACUITY SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITEL
WEALTHTRLUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLCT
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASLIRIES PLC
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
MATIONS TRUST BANK PLC
ACUTTY SECURITIES LIMITED
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
ACUITY SECURITIES LIMITED
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITEDR
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECUREITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES FLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLOC
ACUITY SECURITIES LIMITED
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
NATIONS TRUST BANKE PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
ACUITY SECURITIES LIMITED
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC

Treasury Rills - eount
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED

Loans and receivables

Repurchase agreaments (less than 3 months)
Diebentures

Commercial papers

Assats backed Secunties

Term deposis

Term deposits- Mudharabaha

Fair value through profitoer loss

|nvestment in Uit rusis

FOLICYHOLDER AND OTHER LOANS

Palicy loans
Staff loans

LKBOD425E013
LKBOOS27EQ19
LKBODGIEA1SS
LEBOO426E] 54
LKBOOGIEALSY
.KBO0E28A153
LEBO1032GO14
LEBO1032G014
LEBO1530E152
LEBRO1530E152
LEBORI3I0EISE
LEBO1S30ENS2
LEBD S3ELS2
LEBOOY3IELSS
LEBOLO2TF 156
LEBOO827I152

LERBD052AF 153
LEBO162BGO1Y
LEBOOS26A 155
LEBOISIBEDRIG
LKBO152E1017

LEBO15281017

LKBGI025HOIS
LKBO153IALS
LEBO1533A154
LEBOI53IAT5
LEBOIS3IALS
LKBO]533A154
LEBOL533A154
LEBOISAIATS
LEBO0S27EDTS
LEBOOT29G 156
LEBOOT29G 156
LKBO(425F0I3
LEBDI032G014
LEBOISI3A134
LEBOOS2TEO1S
LKBO1530EIS2
LKBCDA25E013
LKBO1O2RCTS]
LEBOG42AEISH
LKBODEITALS]
LKBODSZTHISE

LECAIR2ZF2LY

Cost
R,

43 607,700
81,484,600
131,779,800
180,005,400
96,080,300
48,345,200
49,631,650
98,645,900
42,924,000
43,491,000
43,111,900
43,300,500
42,737,250
64,274,750
52,546,400
230,013 200
44,971,711
223,678,400
501,810,000
212,670,600
60,725,600
202,307,600
23,898,151
48,157,300
46,295,250
45,883,200
46,433,800
45208250
46,019,950
45,611,500
BS,732,600
36,244,350
35,964,850
47,709,050
43,596,900
33,458,100
770,682,750
42,367,050
19,423,700
93,775,360
45,001,350
1,038,716
122,065,336

46,663,530

8,593,156,002

e

r{:,';;;;(ﬁ.?'r’:ﬁ'-eh

Duration

3 Years
5 Years
5 Years
3 Years
5 Years
5 Years
9 Years
S Years
7 Years
7 Years
7 Years
7 Years
T Years
T Yewrs
6 Years
7143 Years
4 Years
T Years
5 Years
7 Years
T Years
T Years
4 Years
11 Years
1] Years
11 Years
11 Years
11 Years
11 Years
11 Years
5 Years
7 Years
7 Years
3 Years
% Years
10 Years
5 Years
7 Years
3 Years
7 Years
3 Years
5 Years
7 Years

& months

Counpon Rate

24.00%
28.75%
25.05%
2822%
22 006
1.85%
20,25%
20.40%
14 80%
14.50%
14,70%
14.60%
14 90%
13.10%
11,5084
7.19%
7.45%
7.08%
7.32%
8.20%
BT
11.54%
7.20%
12 6%
12.55%
1270%
12.50%
12.95%
12.65%
12 80%
23.00%
29.509
29.75%
25.00%
22.00%
20.00%
23.50%
15, 10%
23.02%
1.00%
2B 2%
15.22%
1.08%

14.30%

Yield Fair Value
Rs,
17.00% 52 834,587
14.00% 113,610,860
18.00% 180,716,021
21 50%% 242295 195
18.00%: 120,477,414
18.00% 60,238,707
18.00% 63,741 344
18.00% 127,482 668
1 1.00%: 44315813
11.00% 44,315,813
11008 44,315,813
11.00% 44 315813
11.00% 44.315813
18.00% 59,637 839
11.75% 47,364 804
1.30% 183 298,414
10.25% 40,609,067
9.00% | 75,669,080
6.75% 155,416,840
3.00% 170,317,363
11.500% 47,167,807
15,5084 |BR6T1 227
| .00 486,587
11.20% 44 958,138
11,20% 44,958,138
11.20% 44,953,138
11.20% 44 958,138
11.20% 44 958,138
11205 44.058,138
11.20% 44,958, 138
18.00% 113,600,860
20,00% 635,821,244
20.00%, 65,821 244
17.00% 57,834,587
17,0084 63,741,334
10.20% 44 958 138
18.00% 284 027,150
11.00% 44315813
18.00%4 105,669,173
10.75% 74,437 317
22.50% 0,573,949
11.40% 1,093,405
7.80% 53,174,843
14.30%% 46 835274
A874,136 428
1023 222
. Rs.
157376600 G4 1,493 141
1,965,182 263 2,079,560,190
1,679 566,373 1,637,038,334
51,1369856 51,123,258
2097 374 659 127976694
| 46,133,564 128,738,319
4, 391,672,445 4,665,928 306
2023 022
Rs. Rs.
498,834,153 -
408,884,193 =
X3 2022
Rs. Rs.
100,932,644 89,614,063
191,500 200,500
107,124,144 9,814,563




LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
9 REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES Rs. Rs.
Reinsurance receivable on claims outstanding 62,149,588 60,236,644

62,149,588 60,236,644

9.1  An ageing of reinsurance receivable on outstanding claims is as follows

Less than 365 days 41,124,556 45,122,571
aver 365 days 21,025,032 15,114,073

62,149,588 60,236,644

10 PREMIUMS RECEIVABLE 2023 2022
Rs. Rs.

Due from policyholders 0.1 565,279,748 406,794,443

Total insurance receivables 565,279,748 406,794,443

10.1  Asat 31 December 2023, premiums receivables of Rs. 238,294,412 (2022 - Rs. 153,430,355) were past due but not

impaired. These relate to a number of corporate customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing
analysis of these premiums receivables are as follows:

Within the credit period

0 to 60 days 326,985,336 253,364,088
Past due but not impaired

60 days to 365 days 230,361,348 149,814,417
Owver 365 days 7933064 3,615,938

238294412 153,430,355
565270748 406,794,443

11 AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
LOLC Finance PLC Other Related Company - 25,604,465
Brown & Company PLC (Other Related Company 1,305 -

1,305 25,604,465

12 OTHER ASSETS 2023 2022
Note Rs. Rs.

Financial assets 12.1 1,573,085 2,012,882

Other assets 12.2 76,110,627 43,833,028

77,683,712 45845910

12.1 Financial assets

Refundable deposits 1,573,085 2012882
1,573,085 2,012,882
12.2  Other assets B8 N
Advances and prepayment i J.r"‘ ".1 ‘II 30,363,038 28,452,544
Withhaolding taxes recoverable \ '8 4 35,950,135 :
Benevolent loan - Life takaful \L > {" 500,000 500,000
Prepay ments ‘-'"-".'.'_':_ Lr-, _' ._;_i_-_-j'."’-'-d‘"‘ 9,2 9?,454 l4,3 Sﬂ,dﬂd

.45 - 76,110,627 43,833,028
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

13

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE CASH FLOWS STATEMENTS

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Favourable cash and bank balances
Bank balance
Cash in hand

Cash and bank balances

Unfavourable bank balances
Bank overdraft balance

Short-term investments

Placement with financial institutions (less than 3 months) ( Note 7.2)

Cash and cash equivalent for the statement of cash flows

MNet debt reconciliation

‘This section sets out an analysis of net debl and movements in net debt for each of the

periods presented

Cash and cash equivalents
Borrowings
[nterest bearing borrowings

2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
401,541,830 140,988,125
75,000 75,000
401,616,830 341,063,125
(318,368,453) (20,577,932)
757,378,600 641,493,141
1,120,626,977 961,978,334
2023 2022
Rs. Rs.

1,120,626,977

961,978,334

{141,634.769) {130,854,072)

Lease liabilities (87,842,907) (118,718,010)
Net cash 891,149,301 692,406,253
Cash and cash equivalents 1,120,626,977 961,978,334
(ross debt — fixed interest rates (229,477.676) (269,572,081)
Net cash 891,149,301 692,406,253

Liability from financing activities Assels Total

Interest bearing Lease liabilities Cash and cash

borrowings equivalents
Met debt as at 1 January 2022 (78.201,112) (148,665,101) 700,436,878 473,570,665
Cash flows - = 261,541,456 261,541,456
Loans obtained from related parties - - - -
Initial fair value adjustment { Transferred
(o a separate reserve) - - - -
Interest amortised (7,664,752) (14,249,830) - (21,914,631}
Translation gain (64,988,208) - {64,988 208)
Remeasurments 21,951,954 21,951,954
Lease payments during the year - 22,245,017 - 22,245,017
Net debt as at 31 December 2022 (150,854,072) (118, 7T18,010) 961,978,334 692,406,253
Cash flows - 158,648.643 158,648,643
Loans obtained from related parties - - -
[nterest amortised (8,208,414} (15,285,122) (23,493,536)
Translation gain 17,427,717 - - 17.427.717
Remeasurments - 21,558,832 - 21,558,832
Lease payments during the year - 24,601,392 - 24,601,392
et debt as at 31 December 2023 (141,634,769) (B7,842,908) 1,120,626,977 H91,14%.301

ﬁ;;’f‘:;'i* PR,
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LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

14 STATED CAPITAL 2023 2022
No. of shares Rs. No. of shares Rs.
14.1 Fully paid ordinary shares 135,000,000 1.350,000,000 135,000,000 1,350,000,000
2023 022
14.2 Fully paid ordinary shares No. of shares Rs. MNo. of shares Rs.
RBalance at beginning of the year 135,000,000 1,350,000,000 135,000,000 1,350,000,000
Shares issued during the year (Note 14.2.1) - - - »
Balance at end of the year 135,000,000 1,350,000,000 135,000,000 1.350,000,000

14.2.1 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company.

15 CAPITAL RESERVES

15.1 Restricted regulatory reserve

The Insurance Regulatory Commission of Sri Lanka (IRCSL) has issued a Direction No 16 on 20 March 2018 on
“Identification and Treaiment of One-off Surplus™ and has instructed all Life Insurance Companies to comply with the new
direction. Based on the puideline, Life Insurance Companies are allowed 1o transfer One-off surplus attributable w
Policyholder Mon-Participating Fund to Sharehalder Fund as at the reporting year ended 31 December 2017. The transfer has
been presented as a separate reserve in the Statement of Financial Position as “Restricted Regulatory Reserve” under Equity
in accordanece with the direction 16.

15.2 Awailable for sale reserve

This represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets until the investments are
derecogrized or impaired.

15.3 Other reserves

Other reserve comprises of the day 01 fair value gain arising on the initial recognition of the related party lpan obtained at a
favourable interest rate.

_AT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

17

INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Amount payable within one year
Amount payable afler one year

Movements of interest bearing loans and borrowings
Balarice at the beginning of the ycar

Interest amortised

Translation (gain) / 1oss

Balance at the end of the year

Details of related party loans included in intevest bearing loans and borrowings

Lender Helationship Interest rate Currency Repayment Terms  Security
LOLC Global  Subsidiary of ultimate 2.50% UsD 05 Years from the Unsecured
Private Limited  parent company date of disbursement

.80 -

Company

2023 2022

Rs. Rs.
141,634,769 150,854,072
141,634,769 150,854,072
150,854,072 78,201,112
8,208,414 7,664,752
(17.427.717) 64,988,208
141,634,769 150,854,072

2023 022
141,634,769 150,834,072
141,634,769 150,854,072
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18

18.1

18.2

18.3

184

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
Defined benefit liability
Defined benefit liability (18.2) 20,292,528 22 228004
20,292 528 22,228,004
Changes in the defined benefit liabilities are as follows:
Defined benefit obligation as of 01 January 22,228,004 18,611,691
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Current service cost 5.816,390 5,184,289
Interest costs 1,556 480 2,140,344
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain /loss 206,656 (1,762,325)
Gratuity payment (11,515,002) {1,945,995)
Defined benefit liability as of 31 December 20,292,528 22,228,004
Key assumptions used in the above valuation are as follows:
Discount rate 13.00% 16.00%
Fulure salary mcreases | 1.00% 13.00%
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years

An actuarial valuation for the gratuity liability was carried out as at 115t December 2023, by Mr. Piyal §. Gunathilake who is a
Chartered Actuary, The valuation method used by the actuaries to value the fund is the "Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost
Method" recommended by LKAS. 19 on Employee Benelit.

Sensitivity analysis on discounting rate and salary increment rate to Statement of Financial Po

sition end Comprehensive Income.

Impact to Financial Impact to
Positien-Increment/ Comprehensive
Rate change % {Reduction) of [rwmc-
Assumption Liability Charged/(Reversal)
Financial year 2023
Discount rate 1+ (1,621,030) {1,621,030)
Discount rate l- 1,886,369 1,886,369
Salary increment rate 1+ 1,874,563 1,874,563
Salary increment rate 1- (1,638,199) (1,559,381}
Finaneial year 2022
Discount rate I+ {1,557,519) (1,557,519)
Discount rate 1- 1,783,379 1,783,379
Salary increment rate 1+ 1.758.363 1,758,363
Salary increment rate 1- {1,559,381) (1,559,381

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this
is unlikely 1o occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined
benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation caleulated

with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined henefit
liability recognised in the balance sheet,

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.
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f~i’§’f\\\\)‘
5 e A

i

™,

F )




LOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

18 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS {Contd...)

18.5 An undiscounted maturity analysis of gratuity liability is given below

1-2 years
3-5 years
Owver 5 years

19 REINSURANCE CREDITORS

Foreign reinsurers

20 AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
LOLL Holdings PLC Ultinate Parent
LOLC General Insurance PLC Other Related Company
LOLC Finance PLC Other Related Company
LOLC Technology Services Private Limited Other Related Company
LOLC Corporate Services Limited Other Related Company

11 OTHER LIABILITIES

Other financial liabilities (21.1)
Non-financial liabilities (21.2)

21.1 Other financial liabilities
Agency commission payable
Accrued expenses
Accounts payable
Other creditors

21.2 Non-financial liabilities
Policy helders advance payments
Benevalent loan
Stamp duty payable
EPF and ETF payable
PAYE tax payable
Withholding 1ax payable
Onher accrued expenses
Crop Insurance Levy
Unidentified deposits

2023 022
Rs. Rs.
3,376,246 3,770,552
11,633,636 11,954,916
46,460,754 62,044,176
61,470,656 77,769,644
2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
117,563,378 138,219473
117,563,378 138,219,473
2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
134,655,715 26,439,891
10,987,701 25,653,745
2412428 :
7,660,081 11,118,259
245000 245,000
155,960,925 63,836,895
2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
371,352,020 348,570,589
485,551,212 304,339,261
856,903,232 652,909,850
125,113,852 169,316,345
39,485,118 33,146,688
178,585,247 116,187,265
28,163,803 29,920,291
371,352,020 348,570,589
409,256,565 252,955,742
500,000 500,000
31,260 26,300
4,198,647 1,131,027
1,461,654 1,016,460
086,958 45,595
3,500,000 3,000,000
5,811,973 4 B02 635
59,804,155 34,861,502

485,551,212

104,339,261
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21 NET WRITTEN PREMIUM

221 Gross premiums on insurance contracts

Long term insurance
Life Takaful

Total gross premiums

2023 2022

Rs. Rs.
5,562,010,0835 4,922 462,187
13,615,975 38,863,340

5,575,626.060

4,961,325,5327

n2 Premiums ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts

Life insurance
Total premiums ceded to reinsurers
Total net premiums

23 INVESTMENT INCOME

23.1 Available-for-sale financial assets
Interest income Treasury Bonds
Interest income Treasury Bills

3.2 Loans and Receivables
Repurchase agreements

Debentures

Commercial papers
Fixed deposit
Asstes back Securities

233 Fair value through profit or loss

Fair value gains on invesment in unit trusts

Total investment income

24 FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Palicy fecs
Total fees and commission income

25 OTHER INCOME

Interest income on policy loans
Interest income on saving deposit:
Proceeds of Sale gain / loss
Foreign exchange gain

Sundry income

16 NET BENEFITS AND CLAIMS

Life insurance coniracis

Tatal gross benefits and claims paid
Claims ceded to reinsurers

Life insurance contracts

Total claims ceded to reinsurers
MNel benefits and claims

310,636,032 275,448,612
310,636,032 275,448,612
5,264,990,028 4,685,876,915
2023 2022
Rs. RS.
1,003,109,314 637,341,575

14,921,600 "
1,018,030.914 637,341,575
89,702,639 66,226,184
236,904,616 220,189.472
380,159,450 229,830,115
56,569,734 25,288,076
5,000,000 4,986,302
768,336,439 546,520,149
79,384,193 30,003,811
79,384,193 30,003,811
1,865,751,545 1,213,865,535
2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
6,365,501 7,603,790
6,365,501 7,603,790
2023 2022
Rs. Rs,
20,083,156 12,690,367
2,021,976 3,927,353
43,454 15,000
15,179,092 -
10,878,739 3,714,301
48,206,417 20,347,021
2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
H.«‘;"‘}" Pﬂ'*"ﬁ‘»“ 2,700,016,07! 1,681,005,674
4 x " 2,700,016,071 1,681,005,674
172,753,606 125,846,273
ST 172,753,606 125,846,273
53~ 2,527,262,465 1,555,159,401
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27

28.1

29

ACQUISITION COSTS

Commission expenses for insurance contracts

OTHER OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Staff expenses (28.1)

Administration and establishment expenses
Selling expenses

Depreciation & amortization

Depreciation right of use the assets
Foreign exchange loss

Other expenses

Stall Expenses

Salaries and bonus

Contribution to defined contribution plans - EPF & ETF
Staff welfarc

Staff training

Gratuity

FINANCE COST

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Orther interest expense

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Stated after charging;

Auditors' remuneration

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Advertising costs

[nvestment handling and fund mobilization charges
Busingss promotion

Agency allowance

Crop insurance levy

=54 -

2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
248,654,149 369,171,799
248,654,149 369,171,799
2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
514,584,056 517,052,743
634,200,409 511,545,396
652,805,505 439,291,739
12,510,191 13,213,900
11,067,954 17,445,322
- 57,030,283
10,529,980 9,371,753
1,835,704,095 1,614,951,136
408,155,306 443,058,565
21,777,911 32 475,636
55,342,269 19,676,915
12,857,140 14,965,554
10,451,430 6,876,073
514,584 056 517,052,743
2023 2022
Rs. Hs.
15,285,123 14,249,880
18,516,492 11,978,207
33,801,615 26,228,087
2023 2022
Rs. Hs.
2.627 834 3,107,995
17,032,998 25,219,165
6,545,148 5,440,057
13,890,047 14,873,529
67,967,853 48,426,357
388,291,552 204,168,106
126,245,123 |55, 875,577
13,200,000 7.700.000
e
s=ta Partnes;

=\
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3

3Ll

31.2

31.3

3.4

TAXATION
The Company was liable for income tax during the period as follows.

As per Section 67 of Inland Revenue Act, No. 24 of 2017, "the surplus distributed to share holders from the life insurance policy
halders fund as certified by the Appointed Actuary functioning within the Regulation of the Insurance [ndustry Act, No. 43 of 2000,
and the investment income of the share holder fund less any expenses incurred in the production of such income” is liable for income
taxes.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company's income tax exponses is Rs. Nil (2021 - Rs. Nil).

Income tax expense for the year

2023 2022
Mote Rs, Rs,
Current income tax charge 31.3 - .
Deferred income tax
Defarred tax credit 314 - -
Income tax reported in the income statement > -
Tax reconciliation statement
Surplus distributed to share holders from the life insurance policy holders fund 300,000,000 750,000,000
Investment Income of Shareholder fund 626,037,569 325,658,732
Allowable cxpenses {18,499 833) (30,222,268)
Cost of Bonus (Profits attributed to policyholder) - L
907,537,736 1,045,436,464

Utilisation of tax losses for which deferred tax assets previously not recognized
Taxable income

Income tax at 30% (2022 - 30%)

Current income tax charge for the year
Ower provision for income tax in the prior years

Current income tax charge

Deferred tax

(907,537,736)

(1,045,436,464)

The Company compuied its income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2023 based on the section 67 of the Inland Revenue
Act No 24 of 2017 and ends with a cumulative tax loss of Rs, 365,376,651 (2022 -Rs 1,606,943,3691 ) which generates a deferred
tax asset amounting fo Rs.109,612,995 at the rate of 30% (2022 - Rs 482,083,107 at the rate of 304, Considering the new Inland
Revenue Act No 24 of 2017 which came in to force effective 01 April 2018, which limits the claim ability of brought forward tax
losses for six years and the considering the continued dispute the industry have with Inland Revenue Department relating to I-E

losses, the Company decided book the deferred tax asset of Rs. 90,185,867 deriving from the tax losses.

A summary deferred tax assets recognised as at 31 December is as follows

2023 2022

Rs. Rs.
Deferred tax assets recognized for tax losses 90,185,867 00,185,867
A summiary tax losses available for carry forward is as follows

Rs. Rs.
Cumulative tax losses as at beginning of the year 1.606,943,691 2628761 402
Adjustment to Tax losses (334,029.304) 23618753
Sel off against taxable profits (907,537,736) (1,045,436,464)
Tox losses available to carry forwarded {can be carry t(f{-l'i’:»‘ 1'11 41 365,376,651 1,606,943,601
Less:
Tax losses for which deferred tax assets recogni 300,619,557 300,619,557
Tax losses for which no deferred tax assets reco 64.757.094 1,306,324,134
Unrecognised deferred tax asset at the rate of 30%  een™f 19,427,128 391,897,240
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31

S 7N |

33

331

334

M1

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic camings per share is caloulated by dividing the net profit after tax for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the yecar.

Basic earnings per share with out one off surplus

M2l 2022

Rs. Rs.
Met profit for the year 938,975,404 1,019,066,228
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 135,000,000 135,000,000
Basic earnings per share 6,96 7.55

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments and contingencies

There were no material capital commitments which require adjustment to or disclosure m the financial statements as at the reporting date.

Letter of guarantees

The Company has obtained letters of guarantees (o the value of Rs, 2,608,737 fram Nations Trust Bank Ple as at 31,12.2023 for the purpose
of bidding for msurance business.

Litigation filed by the Company/ against the Company

Litigation is a common occurrence in the insurance induslry due 1o the nature of the business underiaken. The Company has formal controls
and policies for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of loss reasonably estimated, the Company
makes adjustments to account for any adverse effects which the elaims may have on its financial standing. There were no pending Intigations
against the Company as at 31 December 2023 which would have a material impact on the financial statements.

Assessments on Income Tax

The Company has received Income Tax Assessments from the Department of Inland Revenue for the years of assessments 2011/12, 2002413,
2013/14, 2014/15 and 2017/18 under the Inland Revenue Act, MNao. 10 of 2006,

Commissioner General of Inland Revenue has provided his determination against the Company relating to these assessmenis Appeals have
been made by the Company against (hese determinations of the Commissioner General of Inland Revenue to the Tax Appeal Commission. The
Company is awaiting the decision of theTax Appeal Commission

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Dietails of significant related party disclosures arc as follows

Transactions with the parent company

2023 2022

Company Name MNature of Transaction Rs. Rs.

LOLC Heldings PLC Fund transfers out 291,068,851 298 466,429
Fund transfers in 258,270, 8E3 266,966,425
Interest expense on current account 10,308 079 4,313,456
Expenses mcurred on behalf of company 484,495 588 186,779,776
Payments for fixed assets purchase 1,141,789 7,683,431
Current account seftiements 413,391 438 235,320,741
Investment handimg and fmm@gqh;ym!m gllmges 67,967 B33 48,426,357

Ma RN
LOLC Global Private Limited Interest expense onffre(gh currency loan '\4_ 8208414 7.664,752

-:""“u,_ B __,.*"' Y
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M RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES {Contd...)

342 Transactions with affiliate compa nics

Company Name Nature of Transaction 013 2022
Hs. Rs.
LLOLC Finance PLC Fund transfers out - 25,189,235
Fund transfers in 50,274,164 38,490,807
Expenses incwred on behalf of Company 94,110,989 74,692 414
Current account settlements 15,819,931 92,392,903
Insurance premium in respect of customers introduced- 206,775,742 374,908,364
Seylan Bank PLC Insurance premium in respect of customers introduced & direct 807,090,117 580,594,806
Bane assurance fees paid 115,767.492 94,234 060
LOLC Development Finance LT Insurance premium in respest of customers introduced - 431,880,096
Commereial Leasing & Finance Insurance premium in respect of customers intreduced - 103,362,160
Current aceount settlements - 264,412
Fund transfers out - 47,500
Fund transfers in - 358,161
LOLC General Insurance PLC Fund transfers out - 3,769,984
Fund transfers in - 6,341,416
Expenses incurred on behalFof Company 20994 993 32,593 415
Payments for fixed assets purchase - 212,000
Current account settlements 44 661,038 4993 860
LOLC Motors Limited Expenses incurred on behalf of Company 180,587 728,773
Current account settlements 180,587 228,773
tﬁ'ﬂ&i:‘“h“"“’” Services Private ¢ oon e incurred on behalf of Company 138842618 107,298,081
Current account seltlements 142,300,796 103,243,756
LOLC Corporate Services Private
Limited Expenses incurred on behalf of Company 2,940,000 2,940,000
Current account settlements 2,540,000 2,040,000
Brown & Company PLC Payment of rent 27,156,632 22,615,936

343 Transactions with key management perso nal

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
entities, direetly or indirectly, meluding any director {whether executive or otherwise) of the entity and its parent.

344 Key management personal compensation 1023 2022
Rs. Rs.
Shori-term employment benefits 18,077615 14,489,610
Other transactions 2023 2022
Rs. Hs.

Premium of insurance policies obtained by key management personal - =

The Company carmies out ransactions in the ordinary course of {18 business with parties who are defined as related parties in LEAS 24 -
sgelated Parly Disclosures™ The Pricing applicable to such transactions is based on the assessment of the risk and pricing model of the
Company and is comparable with what is applicd to transactions tetween the Company and its unrelated Customers, except for the refated
party loan obtained during the year ata favourable interest rate

5
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35

35.1

35.1

FAIR YALUE OF FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Fair value of financial investments and liabilities not carried at fair value

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for those financial instruments
which are not already recorded at fair value in the financial statements (i.e. loans and receivables).

Cash and bank balances, premium receivable, reinsurance receivable, repurchase agreement, term deposit, reinsurance
creditor, amounts due to related parties, agency commission payable, other creditors and bank overdraft carrying value
amounts approximate to the fair values due to the short term nature of the instruments. Borrowings from the related party
approximate to the fair value as an adjustment has been made on the fav ourable interest rate applied.

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technigue:

+ Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded securitics) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

+ Level 2:The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
markets) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observahle, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.

Financial assets measured using a valuation technique based on assumptions that are supported by prices from observable
current market transactions are assets for which pricing is obtained via pricing services.

Level 1 Level 2 Total
fair value
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Asat 31 December 2023
Available-for-sale financial assets
Government securities - B,874,136,428 2.874,136,428
Trading assets - fair value through profit or loss
Fair value of unit trusts - 498,884,193 498 884,193

- 9.373,020,621 9,373,020,621

As at 31 December 2022
Available-for-sale financial assets

Government securities - 4,428,312,650 4,428,312,650
- 4 428,312,650 4.428,312,650

The inputs used for fair valuation of Level 2 financial investments are based on current market yields.

-58-
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36 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY MEASUREMENT BASIS 023 022

Rs. Rs.
Financinl Assets

Loans and receivables

[nvestonent securities
Debentures 1,965,182,263 2,079,560, 190
Commercial papers 1,679,566,373 | 637,038,334
Asstes back Securities 51,136,984 51,123,248
Term deposits 292 274,639 127,976,654
Repurchase agreements 757,378,600 641 493,141
Term deposits- Mudharabaha 146,133,364 128, 738,31%
Palicyholder and other loans 101,124 144 89 814,553
Reinsurance receivables 62,149 588 &0 236 A4
Premiums receivable 465,279 744 406,794 443
Amounts dus from related parties 1,305 25,604 465
Orther assets 1,573,083 2,012 882
Cash and bank balances 401,616,830 141,063,125
Available-for-sale investment securities
[nvestment securities
Treasury bonds £,827.301,154 4428312650
Treasury bills 46835274 -
Falr value through profit or loss
Unit trust 463 B84, 193 -
Financial Assets 15,396 437,766 10,019,768,738
Financial liabilitics at amortised cost
Interest beating borrowings 141,634,769 223,507,031
Amounts dus to related parties 155,960,925 63 856 855
Other Ligbilities 171352020 348,570,589
Reinsurance creditors 117,563,378 138219473
Lease Liabiliy 87 842 5908 ILE718,010
Bank overdraft 38,168 453 20,577 932
‘Total Financial Liabilities 912,722,453 913449530

37 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BASED ON THE REMAINING MATURITIES/REALIZATION OF ASSETS
AT THE REPORTING DATE

31.12,2023 Il 31121022
Less than 12 More than 12 Less than 12 More than 12
Months Momths Carrying amount Months Months Carrying amount
Assels Rs. Rs, Rs. Hs. Rs. Rs,
Property and equipment . 12,189,404 12,169,404 . 15.215,647 15,215,647
Right-of-use assets 12,195,037 21,146,930 33,341 968 17,652,036 48.316,718 65 968,754
Intangible asscts . 12,948 E25 12,948,825 - Q452 38T 9492 387
Deferred tax assels E 90,185,867 0,185,867 . o0, 155,847 o0, | 85,867
Investments in RssOCIAtEs - 89 550,000 24 550,000 - B,550,000 B2 550,000
[nvestment securities 3,302,877.072 10,061 815,595 14,264 623 066 4,439,034 754 4 755,207 862 9,094,241 616
Policyholder and other loans 331087 648 £7,136 496 101,124,144 34,694 281 55,1200282 20 R14.563
Reinsurance receivables A1, 124,356 21,025,032 62,149 588 45,122,571 15,114,073 60,2 36,644
Premmiums racaivable 557 346,684 7,933,064 565,279,748 A03, 178,505 3615938 406,794 443
Amounts due from related parties 1,305 = 1,305 25,604 465 - 25,604 465
Other assels 7683 712 - 77,683 712 45845910 - 45,845,210
Cash & bank balances 41 616,830 - 401,616,830 341,063,125 - 341,063,125
Total assels 4426831844 11,283,831,613 15,710,764,457  5352,195,647 4,981 818,774 10,334,004,421
Liabilitics
Insurance contracl babilitizs -
Life insurance 1,945,042,641 7,584,546,263 9,520.588904  2,324.057,8%2 3,749,986 222 6,074,044,114
Interest bearing borrowings - 141,614,769 141,634.76% - 150854072 150 854,072
[ease linbilities 25.682,947 62,159,961 87 8442908 25.221,874 43,496,136 HIg 718010
- 20,292,528 20,292,528 ; 22,228,004 22,228 004
117,563,378 - 117,563,378 138219473 - 138,219473
155,960,925 s 155,960,925 63,856,805 5 63,856,895
#56,903 232 - £56,903 232 652,909 830 - 652,909 850
1,896 344 - |, 396,345 1,896,349 - 1,896,349
3B.368,453 - 38,368,453 H,577 932 - 0,577.532
3,141,417,028 7.808,633,521 10,950,051,446  3.226,740,265 4,016,564,433 7.243,304,699
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38

38.1

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Insurance risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance coniracts is that the acteal claims and benefit payments or the timing thereof,
may differ from expectations. This is influenced by the [requency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and the subsequent

development of long-term claims, Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover
these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfalio of insurance contracts and geographical arcas. The variability
of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance

Nature and extent of risks arising from insurance contracts
Ohjectives, policies and processes for managing risks arising from insurance coniracts

The Company willingly assume the risks of other organisations as the Company’s prime value creation activity. This is the core of the
insurance business and there is no perfect way of measuring the potential impact on insured risk. For non life insurance business, the
most significant risks arise from climate changes, natural disasters and terrorist activities.

The sbove risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across & large portfolio of insurance contracts and peographical areas. The
Company’s tisk management framework focuses on strategic risk, assumed risks and the potential risks. The Company identifics and
categorises risks in terms of their source, their impact on the Company and preferred strategies for dealing with them. The Company
follows an integrated approach for risk management by considering the size, nature and complexity of the business. [t is 2 continuous

process of scratinizing the internal and external environment to identify elements which may have an impact on the company achieving
its” abjectives.

Meihod used to manage risks
Risk appetite and risk tolerance

The Company has made a strategic decision 1o maintain a risk appetite moderately above the average of the insurance market, since it
allows the best potential for creating sharcholder value at an acceptable risk level. The Company manages the volatility and potential
downward risk through diversification.

Risk management culture

Individuals in the Company are well aware of the risk that they are bringing into the Company with their actions, [t can be pricing,
reserving, underwriting and investment, The concept of the risk is well spread across the Company. The sirong governance struclure
within the Company is used as a tool to achicve this target.

ldentification of shock losses

There are three areas of risk which have the potential to materially damage economic value that the Company identified at present as
having the greatest potential for shock losses, They are catastrophe, reserving and investment risk. The Company manage the risk of
shock losses by setting limits on the tolerance for specific risks and on the amount of capital that the Company is willing to expose.

The Company considers insurarice risk to be a combination of the following components:

a). Product design Risk
h). Underwriting Risk
¢), Cleims Risk

a). Product design risk

Life Tnsurance contracts offered by the Company include endowment plans, decreasing term assurance, mort e_g_gteclion plan,
pension plan and group plans. Endowment and term assurance are conventional regular or single prﬂmigp}pﬁi:%ﬁ e sum
benefits are payable on death, maturity or in some cases, permancnt total Endowment products agllivga surrender
completion of three ycars.
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (Contd...)

The main risks that the Company is exposed to, under product design risk are 45 follows:

Mortality risk _|Risk of loss arising due 10 policyholders’ death experience being different from cxpected
Morbidity risk__|Risk of loss arising due to policyholders' health experience being different from expected
Investment retur{Risk of 10ss arising from actual returms being different from expected

Expense risk Risk of loss arising from the expense experience heing different from expected

Policyholder Risk of loss arising due 10 policyholders’ experiences (lapses and surrenders) heing difterent from
decision risk___[expected

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location and type of risk insurcd by the Company.

b). Underwriting risk

The Company’s underwriting stratcgy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified in terms of the type of risk and the level of
insured benefits. This is largely achieved through prudent underwriting, the use of medical screening in order to ensure that pricing
takes account of current health conditions and family medical history as well as detailed elaims handling procedures. Underwriting
limnits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. For example, the Company has the right not to renciy individual policies,
it can impose different terms at revivals and it has the right to reject the payment of fraudulent claims.

The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to
unpredictable future developments thatl can negatively impact the Company.

For contracts for which death or disability is the snsured risk, the significant factors that could increase the overall frequency of claims
are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural disasters, resulting in earlier or more claims than expected. The Company
limits exposure on any single life by way of retention limits agreed with the reinsuress.

Life underwriting risk management

Separate life underwriting division headed by a well qualified management along with & trained staff is in placed in order o closely
monitor the life underwriting functions of the Company.

Pricing decisions of the products are reviewed and guided by qualified actvary to convenience the management to make accurate
pricing decisions.

Reinsurers' advices arc obtained before deciding the terms and conditions of the products in order to assist the proper pricing strategies.
The Company carefully analyse the current health condition and the Family mmedical history of the insurer before deciding the premiums.

¢}, Claims risk

Risk arises due to the posgibility thal the frequeney of claims arising from Life insurance contracts excesds the expected level when
pricing the products.

Some of the specific actions by the Caompany to mitigate the claims riske are shown below.
d). Concentration risk

Based on the Company's operation structure, there is no significant concentration risk.

=



LLOLC Life Assurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2023

8.2

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (Contd...)

¢). Sensitivity analysis

The following tables present the sensiti

af insurance liabilities, holding all other variables constant.

vity of the value of insurance liabilities to movements in the assumptions used in the estimation

. o Decrease in equity and profit
Increase in liability (Rs) before tax (Rs) P
i ; Stress
Type of risk Explanation ; 2023 2022 2023 2022
applied
Risk of loss arising due 10
policyholders® death
Mortality risk expericnce being different
from expected, celeris Mortality from best
paribus all other estimate (BE) to
parameters. BE+10% 80,527,122 61,576,935 (80,527,122)] (61,576,935}
Risk of loss arising due to
Morbidity risk |policyholders health
experience being different {Morbidity from BE
from expected to BE+20% 34,483,482 27,358,157 (34,483,482)|  (27.358,157)
Investment Risk of loss arising from | Yield curve overall
return risk actual retums being 100 BP down (1%
different from expected,  |down} 196,821,345 08,749,700 (196,821,34%) (98,749,7000
Risk of loss arising from
Expense risk the expense experience
being different from Expenses from BE
| expected to BE+10% 146,776,605 £2,327,020 {146,776,605) (82,327,020)
Risk of loss arising due to
Policyholder policyholders’ experiences
decision risk {lapses and surrenders)
being different from Lapses from BE to
expected BEA20% (14,885,900)| 186,191253 14,885,900 | (186,191,259)

The above analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. [n practice, this is unlikely to
neeur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated — for example, changes in lapses
and future mortality.

The metheds and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.
Life claims risk management

+ Life fund valuation is carried out by a qualified independent actuarial valuer on regular basis,

* Claims are reserved immediately at the intimation or on the availability of information of the death or injury of an insured.
injury of an insured,

# Financial authority limits are set based on the claim limits,

Financial risk
The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:
i Credit risk

it Liquidity risk B v S o
"‘é\ﬁ‘l‘ <]

iii Market risk e — N

iv Concentration risk "’

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure 10 ¢ach of the above risks, h&\C ¥'s nbjcciive;)mli,u'les and
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of capital. S—— ;"" e
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Risk management framework

The board of directars of the company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk managemont
framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks Faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems arc reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market canditions, products and services offerad, The Company, through its training and management standards and

procedures, aims 10 develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees understand their roles and
oblipations.

The Board is tesponsible for monitoring compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, The Board is
assisted in these functions by Internal Audit and the Board Audit Committee. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board.

18,2 Financial risk

The Enterprisc Risk Management Comumitiee which consists of senior management was formed to strengthen the risk management
process. Furthermore, the company’s risks are assessed and monitored at the group level by the Integrated Risk Manage ment Committes
of iits ultimate parent company, LOLC Holdings PLC.

{iy Creditrisk

Credit risk is the visk of financial loss to the Company if & customer or counferparty 10 a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms and arises principally from the Company's premium receivahles, re-insurance
receivables, investment debt securities and deposits in commercial banks such as time deposits, demand deposits.

Management of eredit risk

The Company has developed a credit policy approved by the Board and credit is granted based on the same for the policyholders. The
Company has taken the spremium Warranty Clause” into consideration when developing the aforementioned credit policy. As a result
of rigour follow up of outstanding premiums, the policies which are nol settled within the approved credit petiods are cancelled on
regular basis. The Company cheeks the status of the outstanding premium before settling claims to reduce the credit risk. The Company

has implemented an impairment revizw for premium receivables periodically and pravide for the same based on the resulis.

Credit rigk with regards to re-insurance receivahles is mitigated by selecting the re-insurers with higher credit ratings and reviswing
their ratings periodically.

The Company evaluates the credit rating of the respective invesiee and/or respective issue prior to the investment decision is made.
Furthermore, the Company focuses on talerzble levels concentration risk and portfolio monitoring in line with Company's risk appetite.
A stringent process is in place to comply with the single investment exposure limits prescribed by the regulator, the Insurance
Regulatory Commission of Sri Lanka.
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK {Contd...}
Liguidity risk

Liquidity visk is the sk that the Company will encounter difeulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial lizhilites ihat are seitled by delivering cash or anather financial
pssel.

Management of liquidity risk

The Compary's spproach to managing liquidity 1 te ensue {hat Funds svailable are adeguate to meet clair payments 1o s policyholders and to ensure operitional expenses 10 e
peid when {hey are due.

The main sources of the Cornpary's funding are capital 2nd gross written premium. The Company alse maintains a portfolio of readily marketable securities 1 farther strengihen its
icpaidity position, The investment dusstions are diversificd depending on the cash flow needs of the Company and the meturity perods are regularly reviewed. Cash flos amalysis is
done prior ta invesiments ae mide.

The Company's reaty agicements with meinsurers contam clanses permitting the immeadiate draw down of funds to meet claim payments should cliim events exceed a certain agreed
size

Exposuré lo {guidiiy risk

The Company monitirs the liquidity positicn of the Company to asses Funding requirements. Liquid assetd ivchucke cash and shat term investments and bills purchased. The Company
alse menitors misturity profile of its assets anid liabilites.

Maturizy profile of investments based on rermaiREnE mAnCity 1% given below

D& monthy | 712 mnﬂ.u“lr 1-2 years h 3-5 years H H Totsl l
L_ e 1 Ra. Re. Rs. Owwer B yeurs Ha.

Ciash and cash equivalents 401 616,830 . =

As il 31 December 2023

AD1B16,830
Avaliablefor-sale investment securities
Government securitics 96,676,250 . 1,176,638.004 7.050240.4 12 4 762,750,000 13,986,304 662
Loans snd receivables
Repurchase agresints 757,478,600 . * - . 757,378,600
Dieheniures 185,365,252 319,150,625 116,431 750 2,109,053, 750 - 2,843,003 377
Commeecial papers 1,212,533.213 628,734,247 1,841,267,460
Asgies back Soowrties - 2 55,000,000 - . 55,000,004
Term deposit 255 475,530 §41,540,807 - . - 197,016,697
Policyholder and other loans | 7,260,928 16,726,719 23,278,042 39812273 4 046,181 101,124,144
Brins Wrancy Bssets 35,520,501 50003 655 5,188 209 19,636,733 - 52,149,598
Premim receivabies AT7RA0048 79466636 6,104,377 1,228 687 - 564,279,748
Refundahle deposits - =+ 5 1,573,085 - 1,573,085
3,430 707,912 1,2001,222,689 1, 486,342468 10,117,544, 040 4766,756,181 11,011,714,151
Financial Linbilities
[nterest hearing bormawings - - 163,761,750 . 163,761,750
Amipusits due to related parties 155,960,925 . . . - 155,960,923
Reinsurance eraditors 117,563 378 < - - . 117,563,378
(rher Anancial labilities 371,352,020 . - - B 371,352,000
Lease liahilies 18,470,930 18,890,616 39,056,977 12580814 . 105,039,332
Bank overdraft I8, IGE 453 - - - - 38,168,453
J01.715, 706 TR.E00,616 35,096,577 196,392,564 = 556,045,865

As at 3 December T022

-6 months 7-12 months 1-2 years IS yeard -]1 [I Total
Hs, Ra. E Ru. [[ e Ovee 05 years R,

Cash and cash equivalenls 341,063,125 . - 341.063,12%
Available-for-sale investment securitics
Govemment securities 753,784,824 451 TRA B2 775,743,398 4 638,596,944 1,844 387,520 10,556,697,910
Loans and receivables
Repurchase agrecments 647,636,003 z < . - 547,636,005
Debertures 159,056,563 301,396,563 (80,418,730 1928457500 2TE000,000 2,787 569375
Commercial papers 1,150, 104,500 638,156,607 1, 818,461,503
Asstes back Seountics - E 55,004,000 . = 55,000,000
Term depasil 155,174,471 124,500,000 - B - 279 ET4ATL
Piticyholder and other Loans 16,503,650 L&, 190,591 | 8,627 861 36,492,421 - %9814, 560
Reinpumance Asssls 11.129.21% 13,993,352 10,596472 1,517,601 . 60,236,644
Preminm teceivablcs 3139 905942 63,272,564 3,492,787 123,051 . A6, T4 443
Refundabls deposits - - : 2012882 - 2,017 182
3,619,398,73% 1643 654497 1,044 879,268 b 69,600,499 4,062 387,920 17,059 960,921
Financisl Liabilitdes
Interest bearing borowings - = - 185.004,375 - 185,004,178
Agmaunts doe 1o relaled narties 63,856 895 = - - - 63,556,893
Feinsurance eredibors 134219473 - » i . 138,219,473
Cither financinl habikities 148,570, 589 - . - - 148,570,583
Lease liabilities 12,160,356 15,297 478 AT 390810 TLATT 92 E 134,535,636
Bank averdrafl 20,577,952 - = - - 20,571.532
583785245 15,297,678 37,390,810 256,712,167 - 02,794 500
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (Contd...)

Market risk

This refers to the risk of losing value of investments duc to aiverse mavement in essets prices and possibility for an investor to experience losses due to factors that affect the overall
performance of the finnscial mackets. This principally comprises of interest fate risk and price risks.

Management of market risk

The Compiny maked investment decisions bused on the fandamentals rather than on speculative motive, The band investment portfolio s manitored by the Board on a regular basis
and the overall investment portfolio is reviewsd by the Board on a monthly biasia The interstt rate risk is managed throogh fixed rated investment partfoiio,

Senaitivity analysis — interest rate rlsk

“The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk illustrates bow chiangés in the fair vafue or futuse cash flows of 2 Financial instrument will fuctuate becauss of changes in markst interest
rates at the reporting date. The anzlysis is based on the sssumption that all pther variabes are hield constant with market interest rites increasing! decreasing by 100 besis points. The
methods and types of nssumphons vsed i prepuring the sensitivity analysis did nat change compared to the prior peried,

An incresse in 100 basis points in inierest yields would result in a Loss for the period of Rs 249 million (2022: Rs {OBMn). A decresse in 100 hasis poinis in inferest yiehis would
resull in a gain for the perad of Rs254 million [2022: Rs 106Mn). These balances would be directly secogaized in squity.

The expasure of the Company™s hond irvesument porifolio to inferest rate changes it ihie end of the reporting period are as follows:

2023 H o5 of total Investmen 1022 “ %nnmllnm:men1
rifiolin porifalio

Company’s bond portlofio

Maturity dates

Less than | year 43,101,250 0% | 737,569,648 14%
1-5 years 9,126,878,412 4% $474,740,342 (228
Cheer 5 years 4,762,750,000 11% 3.844,381,920 42%

13,912,720.662 D% 10,536,607.910_ 116%

Sensitivity analysls - price risk
The sensitivity analysis for price risk illustates hrwt changes in the fair vahse of cquity securities will fluctuate beoause of changes in rmarket pricesat the reporting date.

Concentration risk

This refers 1o the risk that the Company will sulfer from lack of diversification, investing to heavily inone indutiry, oné BEoETaphic AITA O Hne type of security

Management of coneentration risk

To comply with ihe nsk toleonse and appetite of the Company & significant amgunt of botal investments ae mede in government securities which are fisk free. A careful analysis is
dome before mvesting in equity investments, A ciringent process is in place to comply with the single investment gxposurs fmits preseribed by the Insurarce Regulstory Comimission
of $ri Lanka, Furtbermare the Board reviews the company’s investmeats portfedio on o manthly basis.

The composition of the Company s imvestments a5 at 71 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 we given in the note et &,

Forelga currency risk

This refers o the risk that the fair valué or futwre zach flows of & fnanstal instrument vl fucute becuss of changes in Foreign exchange rates.
Semsitivity analysia - foreign currency risk

The sensitiviry analysis for foreign curtency sk illusirates how changes in the fair value of financial instruments will Muctuate because of chinges in foreign exchange rates &t the
reporting date.

A strenghtening of 10% of the LS D against the LKR would result in 2 loss for the period of Re. 14,16 million (2022 - Rs 15,09 million. A weakening of 10% of the LISD agsinst the
LER would result in & pain fior the period af Bs 14,16 million {2022 - Re. 15,04 million)

The Company's expature to foreign currency +isk al the end of the reparting period, expressid in P was a5 follows:

7013 == | 2022 =

UsD | Total|| usD | Total]
Foreign currency loans 141,634,763 141,634,765 150 854,072 150,854,072
141,634,769 141,634,769 150,854,072 150,854,072

Capital managemenl
‘The Comgany’s ohjectives when managing, capital, which consists of wtal equity on the statement of financisl position, are:
Ta comply with the insurance capifal requirsments required by the regulator, the Insuranee Regulatory Cormemission of Sri Lanks.

T safeguard the Company”s atulity to continue 45 a going concem 50 that it ean cantinue 10 pravide returns for sharcholders and benefits
for ather stakeholders; and

To provide adequate retums 1o shareholders by pricing insurance cORTACts CANMERSOrals with the level of sk,

The Insurasee Regulatory Commission of Sn Lanks specifiss the minimum amount and solvency ratio that mast he maintained, hased on the Regulstion of Insurance Industry Aat,
o3 of 2000 and ather applicable Taws and regilations governing fhe insurance inidustry, The minimum capital requirements applicable to the Company is R 500,000,000 The
Company has complicd with all of he wiernally fmposed capital requirements anvd sbvency ratio requirements to which it is subject

EVENTS AFTER THE REFORTING DATE

o circumstances have arisen since the ssatement of financial posinon date which requiras adjustments o or disclosures in the fnzncial datements.
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